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Marks and Spencer plc (the ‘Company’} is the: main trading company of the Marks & Spencer group of comparies. The Company and its
subsidiaries {the 'Group") are one of the UK's leading retallers of clothing, food and home products, We employ over 77,000 people and have
around 1,000 stores including Simply Food franchised stores. We also trade in wholly-owned stores in the Republic of Ireland, Hong Kong
and China and have partly-owned stores in a number of European countries.

Further information that fulfils the Business review requirements of the Companies Act 1985 and includes anatysis using fimancial key
performance indicators can be found in the following sections of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report:

- Chairman's overview on pages 1 - 11
- Financial review on pages 14 — 16 and 48 - 49
- Operating review on pages 26 - 41
- Environmental, Social and Community matters on pages 42 - 45 and Employees on pages 46 - 47,
2000 2008

£m om
Summary of Group results
Revenue 9,062.1 90220
Operating profit before property disposals and exceptional items 7689 1,089.2
Net finance costs : {164.5) (82.2)
Adjustad profit before tax _ _ 6044 1,007.0
Profit on property disposals L 6.4 27.0
Exceptional costs {(135.9) -
Exceptional pension credit 231.3 95.0
Profit before tax 706.2 1,129.0

Revenue increased by 0.4% o £9,062.1m. Operating profit (before property disposals and exceptional itemns) decreased by 29.4% to
£768.9m.

Net finance costs, were £164.5m compared with £82.2m last year. The average interest rate of borrowings during the period was 6.1% (ast
year 5.9%). Profit before tax was £706.2m compared with £1,129.0m fast year.

Profit and dividends _

The profit for the financial year, after taxation, amounts to £506.8m {last year £820.9m). The directors have declared dividends as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Ordinary shares: _..._
Paid interim dividend 4.6p (last year 4.9p) T T3 1402
Proposed final dividend 5.3p (ast year 7.9p) 1511 225.2
Total ordinary dividend 9.9p per share (last year 12.8p) 282.2 365.4

Principal risks and uncertainties

The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the Company are considered to relate to competition from other retallers, the economic
environment, employee retention, new stores and the modernisation of the existing portfolio. The directors manage these risks at a Marks
and Spencer Group plc level and they are discussed on pages 56 to 57 of that Group’s annual report which does not form part of this report,
but is stil considered up 1o date in this respect. Copies of the Marks and Spencer Group ple consolicated financial statements can be
obtained from the Company Secretary at Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London W2 1NW.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Stuart Rose

lan Dyson

Steven Sharp

Graham Oaldey  resigned 31 July 200G
Amanda Mellor  appointed 17 July 2009




Group directors’ report continued

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group and Company financial statements in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs”)

as adopted by the EU. The financial statements are required by law
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the profit of the Company and Group for that
period.

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply therm
consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state that the financial statements comply with [FRSs as adopted
by the EU; and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis,
unless it is appropriate to presume that the Group will continue in
business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to

ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Acts

and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detecticn of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

- the Group and Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the Group and the Company; and

— the Business review contained in the Marks and Spencer Group
plc Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and

performance of the business and the position of the Group and the

Company, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.

Audit information

Pi_fgg_t“g_rs’ indemnities

The Cormpany maintaing directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
which gives appropriata cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The Company has also granted indemnities to each of its
directors to the extent permitted by law.

Qualifying third party indernnity provisions (as defined by section 234
of the Companies Act 2006) were in force during the year ended 28
March 2009 and remain in force, in relation to certain losses and
liabilities which the directors may incur to third parties in the course of
acting as directars or employses of the Company or of any
associated company.

Employee involvement

Each director confirms that, so far as he is aware, there is no relevant

audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and

that each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken

as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and 1o ensure that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information,

We have maintained our commitment to employee involvernent
throughout the business.

Employses are kapt wall informed of the performance and cbjectives
of the Group through personal briefings, regular meetings, email and
Chairman broadcasts at key points in the year to all head office
employees and store management. In addition many of our store
colleagues can join the hriefings by telephone to hear directly from
the Board. These types of communication are supplemented by our
employee publications including, "Your M&S™ magazine and OVD
presentations. More than 3,500 employees were elected onto
Business Involvernent Groups ('BlGs') across every store and head
office location to represent their colleagues in two-way
communication and consultation with the Company. They have
continued to play a key role in a wide variety of business changes, in
what has been a very challenging year.

The fourteenth meeting of the European Works Council (EWC')
{established in 1995) tock place in August 2009. This council
provides an additional forum for informing, consutting and involving
employee representatives from the countries in the European
Community. The EWC will includs observers attending frorm our
subsidiary companies established in the Czech Republic and Greece.

Directors and senior management regularly visit stores and discuss
with employees matters of current interest and concern to them and
the business through listaning groups, meetings with BIG members
and informal discussion,

Share schemes are a long-established part of our total reward
package, encouraging and supporting employse share ownership. In
particular, over 26,000 employees currently participate in Sharesave,
the Compary's all employee Save As You Earn scheme.  Further
information on the Save As You Earn scheme can be found on
pages 95 to 97 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report.

We maintain contact with retired staff through communications from
the Comparny and the Pension Trust. Member-nominated trustees
have been elected to the Pension Trust Board, including employees
and pensiorers. We continue to produce a regular Pensions Update
newsletter for members of our final salary pension scheme and the
M&S Retirement Plan. :




Group directors’ rebo}t continued

Equal opportunities

The Group is committed to an active Equal Opportunities Policy from
recruitrment and selection, through training and development,
appraisal and promation, to retirement.

It is our poficy to promote an environment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone will receive equal
treatment regardiess of age, gender, gender reassignment, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disability, hours of work, nationality, refigion
or belief, marital or civl partnership status, disfigurement, political
apinions or sexual orientation. All decisions refating to employment
practices will be objective, free from bias and based sclely upon work
criteria and individual mertt,

The Group is responsive to the needs of its employees, customers
and the community at large and we are an organisation that
endeavours to use everyone's talents and abilities and where
diversity is valued. ‘

Employees with disabilities

It is our policy that people with disabilities should have ull and fair
consideration for all vacancigs. During the year, we continued to
demonstrate our commitment to inteniewing those peaple with
disabilities who fulfil the minimum criteria for employment, and
endeavoured to retain employees in the workdorce if they become
disabled during employment. We will actively retrain and adjust their
erwironment where possible to alow them to maximise their
potential.

We continue to work with external organisations to provide
workplace opportunities through our innovative Marks & Start
scheme and by working closely with JobCentrePlus.

Essential contracts or arrangements

Creditor payment policy

For all trade creditors, it is the Group's policy to:

- agree the terms of payment at the start of business with that
supplier;

~ ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment; and
- pay in accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations.

The Company, has a policy conceming the payment of trade
creditors as follows:

- general merchandise payments are received between 19 and 26
days after the stock was ddlivered;

- food paymenis are received between 18 and 25 days after the
stock was delivered; and

— distribution suppliers are paid monthly, for costs incured in that
month, based on estimates, and payments are adjusted quarterly
to reflect any variations to estmate.

Trade creditor days for the Company for the year ended 28 March
2009 were 20.5 days, or 13.7 working days (ast year 15.3 days, or
10,2 working days), based on the ratio of company trade creditors at
the end of the year to the amounts invoiced during the year by trade
creditors,

Market value of properties

The Company is required to disclose any contractual or other
arrangements which it considers are essential to its business. We
have a wide range of suppliers for the production and distribution of
products 1o our customers. Whilst the loss of or disruption to certain
of these arrangements could terporarily affect the operations of the
Group, none are considered to be essential, with the exception of
certain warshouse operators and the provider of the Company’s e-
commerce platform.

The last formal valuation of the Group's properties was carried out in
September 2006. Taking into account movements in the Group's
property portfolio since that date, the directors are of the opinion that
the market value of the Group's fixed assets and leasehold
properties, at 28 March 2008, exceeded their net book value
{inclucing prepayments in respect of leasehold land) by
approximately £0.8bn.

Charitable donations
During the year, the Group made charitable donations to support the
community of £12.7m (ast year £15m). These principally consisted of
cash donations of £5.4m (last year £5.4m) which included
Breakthrough Breast Cancer, Groundwork, WWF, Shelter, our Marks
& Start programme and local community donations. We also
donated £1.3m (ast year £1.9m) of employee time principally on
Marks & Start and school work experience programmes, and stock
donations of £5.7m (last year £7.5m) to a variety of charities including
Newdife Foundation for Disabled Children and Shelter.




Group directors’ report contlnued

Pollhcal donatlons

it is our policy not to make donations to any political party
Accordingty neither the Company nor its subsidiaries made any
donation to any registered party or other EU political organisation, or
incurred any EU political expenditure during the year. As defined in
the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (PPERA.

The PPERA gives wide definitions of what constitutes political
donations and expenditure. Accordingly, as a precautionary
measure, to protect the Company, should the Company

inadvertently reach the legislation, by making a payment which could

be classified as a political donation, approval was granted at the
2006 AGM for the Company and its five principal employing
companies to make donations to political organisations and to incur
political expenditure up to a maximum of £100,000 per year. This
authority will expire at the 2010 AGM.

Significant agreements - change of control

There are a number of agreements to which the Company is party
that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid. Details of the significant
agreements of this kind are as follows:

« the £400m Medium Term Notes {MTNs) issued by the Company

to various institutions on 28 March 2007 under the Group's £3bn

Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN} programme contain an option
such that, upon a change of control event, combined with a
credit ratings downgrade to below sub-investment level, any
holder of an MTN may require the Company to prepay the
principal amount of that MTN;

the £250m puttable and callable reset notes issued by the

Company to various institutions on 11 December 2007 under the

Group's £3bn EMTN programme contain an option such that,
upon a change of control event, combined with a credit ratings

downgrade to below sub-investment level, any holder of an MTN

may require the Company to prepay the principal amount of that
MTN;

the $500m US Notes issued by the Company to varous
institutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US
Securities Act contain an option such that, upon a change of
control event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to
below sub-investment level, any holder of such a US Note may
require the Company to prepay the principal amount of that US
Note;

the $300m US Notes issued by the Company to various
institutions on 6 December 2007 under section 144a of the US
Securities Act contain an option such that, upon a change of
control event, combined with a credit ratings downgrade to
below sub-investment level, any holder of such a US Note may
require the Company to prepay the pnncxpal amount of that US
Note;

the £1.2bn Credit Agreement dated 13 August 2004 and the
£400m Credit Facility Agreement dated 3 February 2008
bhetween the Company and varicus banks both contain a
provision such that, upon a change of control event, unless new
terms are agreed within 60 days, the facilities under these
agresments will be cancelled with all outstanding amounts
becoming immediately payable with interest;

Post balance sheet event

e the agresment between HSBC and the Company relating to
M&S Money dated 9 November 2004 {as amended and restated
on 1 March 2005) contains a clause such that, upon a change of
control of the Company, any new owner would be obliged 1o give
undertakings to HSBC in respect of the continuation of the
agreement, negotiate revised terms or terminate the agreement;
and

» the agreement between Marks and Spencer plc and Marks and
Spencer Pension Trust Limited (as trustes of The Marks and
Spencer Pension Scheme) (the 'Pension Fund') dated 25 March
2009 relating to Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership
(the ‘Partnership'} contains a clause such that, upon a change of
control of the Company, Marks and Spencer plc shall elect either
to cause the Partnership to surrender its discretion over the
payment of annual distributions to the Pension Fund or to
increase the rate at which compensatory interest accrues on any
annual payments that Marks and Spencer plc has elected to
defer.

On 31 March 2008, Marks and Spencer Reliance India Pvt Limited, a
51% subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition of 100% of
the issued share capital of Supreme Tradelinks Private Limited, which
up until this date was the Group’s franchisee in India, for cash
congideration of £6.5m.

Going concem

_Audltors o

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statements, the directors have considered the business activities as
out on pages 1 to 49 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual
Report as well as the Group's principal risks and uncertainties as set
out on pages 56 and 57 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual
Report. Based on the Group's cash flow forecasts and projections,
the Board is satisfied that the Group will be able to operate within the
level of its faciities for the foreseeable future. For this reason the
Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
financial statements.

Resolutions to reappoint PncewaterrnuseCoopers LLP as auditors of
the Company and to authorise the Audit Committee 1o determing
their remuneration will be proposed at the 2009 AGM.

By order of the Board

Amanda Melor, Executive Director
London

9 September 2009




Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Marks and Spencer Group plc

We have audited the Group and parent company financial
statements (the ‘financial statements’) of Marks and Spericer pic for
the year ended 28 March 2009 which cornprise the Consolidated
income statement, the Consolidated and Company balance sheets,
the Consolidated and Company cash flow statements, the
Consolidated and Comparny statements of recognised income and
expense and the related Group and parent company notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therain,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

Opinion

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by
the European Union are sat out in the statement of directors’
responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and irefand). This report, including the
opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s
members as a body in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
this opinion, accept or assume respongibility for any other purpose o
to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed Dy our pricr
consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a trug and fair view and whether the financial staternents have
been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Group Directors’ Report is consistent with
the financial statements. The information given in the Group
Directors’ Report includes that specific information cross-refermed
from the business review section and principal risks and uncertainties
section of the Group Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the

information and explarations we require for our audit, or if information

specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We read the Group Directors’ Report and consider the implications
for our repart if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

on Auditing (UK and Irefand) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includses an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group's and Company's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or esTor.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial.

In our opinion:

- the financial statements give atrue and fair view, in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group’s and the parent compary's affairs as at 28 March 2009
and of the Group's and the parent company’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended;

— the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the
Group financial staterments, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation; and

- the information given in the Group Directors’ Repert is consistent
with the financial statements.

Hyomiclitmusboosfir £/

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London
9 September 2009




Consolidated income statement

52 woeks
endad

52 weeks

endled
28BMarch 29 March
2009 2008
Notes £fm £m
Revenue 2.3 80621 90220
Operating profit 2,3 8707 12112
Finance income ) 50.0 64.4
Finance costs & (214.5) (146.6)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 706.2 11,1290
Analysed between:
Before property disposals and exceptional items 6044 11,0070
Profit on property disposals 3 6.4 270
Exceptional costs 5 {135.9) -
Exceptional pension credit 510 231.3 95.0
Income tax expense 7 (199.4) (308.1)
Profit for the year 506.8 820.9
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 508.0 8216
Minority interests (1.2} 0.7)
506.8 820.9
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
52 woeks 52 weeks
ended endad
28March 29 Mach
2000 2008
£m £m
Profit for the year 506.8 820.9
Foreign currency translation differences 33.1 213
Actuarial {osses)/gains on retirement benefit schemes {927.1} 605.4
Cash flow and net investment hadges
— fair value movements in equity 304.8 {33.5)
= recycled and reported in net profit o o {206.8) 1.3
- amountrecogrised ininventories o o B8) 24
Tax on items taken directly to equity T T 2258  (185.7)
Net (losses)/gains not recognised in the income statement (578.8) 4112
Total recognised income and expense for the year (72.0y 11,2321
Attributable to:
Equity sharehclders of the Company B o (70.8) 12328
Minority interests T T T (1.2) 0.7
{72.0) 1,232.1




Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at
28 March 29 March
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets o
Intangible assats 12 400.3 305.5
Property, plant and equipment 13 4,834.0 47040
Investment property 14 248 25,0
Investment in joint ventures 15 13.8 986
Other financial assets ) 16 141 630
Retirement benefit asset 10 - 5040
Trade and other receivables 17 3368 4100
Derivative financial instruments 21 2540 1 8.2
Deferred tax assets 23 1.6 -
58794 6,039.3
Current assets _ __ B B L L R
Inventories - i o ~ 7T B30 _ 4889
Other financial assets T T T T - 16 2,6724 26334
Trade and other receivables - - o ) 17 285.2 3074
Derivative financial instruments ) 21 926 184
Cash and cash equivalents 18 4229 318.0
"~ 4,009.1 3,766.1
Total assets 9,888.5 98054
Liabilities
Current liabilities '
Trade and other payables 1¢  1,073.5 975.6
Borrowings and other financial lisbilities 20 9428 878.6
Partnership liabiiity to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Schems 20 71.9 50.0
Derivative financial instruments 23 76.2 351
Provisions 2 63.6 1.1
Current tax liabilities 78.9 37.5
2,3069 19879
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit deficit o _ w1522 20.5
Trade and other payables ST - B T 19 2438 1912
Borrowings and other financial liabilities - 20 21179 1936.5
Partnership labiity {0 the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 20 680 6732
Derivative financial instruments 21 3.0 -
Provisions T » 402 148
Deferred tax liabilities 23 2255 3721
2,850.6 3,208.1
Total liabilities 5157.5 5,196.0
Net assets 4,710 46004
Equity
Called-up share capital 24,25 7125 7125
Share premiunmn accournt 25 3861 3861
Capital redemiption reserve 25 80 80
Hedging reserve 25 626 (36.9)
Retained sarnings 25 3,5429 35324
Total shareholders’ equity 47121 4,602
Minority interests in equity 189 7.3
Tota! equity 4,7310 46094

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issua on 9 September 2009. The financial statements aiso

comprise the notes on pages 9 to 38.
Stuart Rose Chairman

lan Dyson Group Finance and Operations Director




Consolidated cash flow information

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28March 29 March
2009 2008
Notes o £m
Consolidated cash flow statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations e 13727 1,2359
Tax paid (81.3) (166.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities ~ 1,2914 10697
Cash flows from investing activities L L o
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired N ____ - (484
Purchase of property, plant and equipment T B ~ (5408)  (958.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment T R 58.3 916
Purchase of intangible assets {121.6) (60.6)
Purchase of non-current financial assets (4.4) -
{PurchaseYsale of current financial assets (1.1) 28
Interest received 12.7 48
Net cash outflow from investing activities (596.9) (966.2)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (197.1) 88.9)
Cash {outflow)/inflow from borrowings (25.8) B7
Drawdown/(repayment) of syndicated bank facility 108.1 317.6
Increase in Parent Company loan 34.7) (5623.8)
Issue of medium-term notes - 631.7
Payment of liability to the Marks & Spericer UK Pension Scheme . (15.1} _ -
Repayments under finance leases - - o o @5
Equity dividends paid T - T T ess3) (6440
Purchase of own shares by employes trust B - 31.9)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (521.9) (34.1)
Net cash inflow from activities o 1726 694
Effects of exchange rate changes T a : 7.8 1.5
Opening net cash , 117.9 47.0
Closing net cash 28 298.3 117.8
52 weeks 52 woeks
ended anded
28 March 20 March
2000 2008
Restated
Notes m £m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt ) A
Opening net (debt)/funds S T 493.1) 1113
Net cash inflow from activities B B _ 1726 694
Increase/(decrease) in current financial assets i T T ) 1.1 28
Increase in debt financing o i o {31.5} (4307
Debt financing net of liquid resources acquired with subsidiaries - (29.8)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (non-cash) 539.6 {199.0)
Exchange and other non-cash movements (60.2) (11.7)
Movement in net funds/{debt) 621.6 (604.4)
Closing net funds/(debt) 28 128.5 (493.1)




Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)'s annual

. . _ impravements project was published in May 2008 and is effective
Basis of preparation , , from 29 March 2009. The project makes minor amendments to a
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with number of standards on topics including investments in associates,

Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union, International Financial Reporting Interpretations N
Committee {iFRIC) interpretations and with those parts of the Amendment to |AS 39 - *Financial Instrumenits: Recognition and
Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS,  Measurement’ was issued in July 2008, It prohibits designating

i ) . . ) inflation as a hedgeable component of a fixed rate debt and the
In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial inclusion of time value in the one-sided hedged risk when designating

statements, the directors have considered the business activities as options as hedges. It is required to be implemented retrospectively
set out on pages 1 to 49 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc by the Group from 4 April 2010.

Annual Report as well as the Group's principal risks and uncertainties

as set out on pages 56 to 57 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Amendment to 1AS 32 - ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation and
Annual Report. Based on the Group's cash flow forecasts and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staterments — Puttable Financial
projections, the Board is satisfied that the Group wiil be able to Instruments and Obligations Arising on LigLidation' was issued in
operate within the level of its facifties for the foreseeable future. For  February 2008. It addresses the liability versus equity classification
this reason the Group continues to adopt the going concern basisin  of certain puttable financial instuments and instrurments, or

intangible assets, borrowing costs and impairment of assets.

preparing its financial statements. components thereof, which impose upon an entity an obligation
, , . ‘0 defiver a pro rata share of net assets on liquidation. It is requirec
Following a review of the definition of net debt, a non-GAAP 1o be implemented by the Group from 29 March 2009.

measure, the directors believe that it is appropriate to include the , ‘ -
fair value of derivatives which are directly related to debt instruments A summary of the Company’s and the Group's accounting policies
within debt. The comparative net debt figure has been restated to is given below:

reflect this change - see note 28. Accounting convention

The following IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments have The financial staternents are drawn up on the historical cost basis
been adopted in the financial statements for the first time in this of accounting, except as disclosed in the accounting policies set
financial pericd: out below.

IFRIC 13 - ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ was issued in June Basis of consalidation

2007. It explains how entities that grant loyalty award credits should  The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements
acoount for their obligations to provide free or discounted goods of Marks and Spencer plc andallits subsidiaries made up to the year
or servicas to customers who redeem such award credits. It was end date. Where necessary, adustments are made to the financial
implemented by the Group from 30 March 2008 and has had no statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting policies used in
impact on the results or net assets of the Group. line with those used by the Group.

Amendment to International Accounting Standard (|AS) 38 - Subsidiary undertakings are all entities over which the Group has
‘Intangible Assets’ was issuied in May 2008, It clarifies the timing of ~ the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
the recognition of expenditure on advertising and promotion accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the vating

activities. It was implemented by the Group from 30 March 2008 and  fights. Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year are recorded
has had no material impact on the results or net assets of the Group.  Using the acquisition method of accounting and their results included

, from the date of acquisition.
Amendment to IFRS 2 - ‘Share-Based Payments' was issued
in January 2008. It clarifies the terms ‘vesting conditions’ and The separable net assets, both tangible and intangible, of the newly
‘cancellations’. It was implemented by the Group from 30 March acquired subsidiary undertakings are incorporated into the financial
2008 and has led to a £12.4m charge to the income statement statements on the basis of the fair value as at the effective date
in the current year. of control.
The foliowing IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations and amendments have Resuits of subsidiary undlertakings disposed of during the financial
been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early year are included in the financial statements up to the effective date
adopted by the Group: of disposal, Where a business component representing a separate

maijor Tine of business is disposed of, or classified as held-for-sale,
it is classified as a discortinued operation. The post-tax profit or
loss of the discontinued operation is shown as a single amount on
the face of the income statement, separate from the other results
af the Group.

IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments’ was issued in November 2006.

It replaces IAS 14 - ‘Segmental Reporting’ and requires operating
segments to be disclosed on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting. It is required to be implemented by the Group from

29 March 2009, and will have no impact on the results or net

assets of the Group but managernent is still considering the impact  Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
on disciosures. transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

IFRIC 16 — *Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation’ was
issued in July 2008. It provides clarification on the accounting for net
investment hedges. It is required 1o be implemented by the Group
from 29 March 2009 and is not expected to have a material impact
on the results or net assets of the Group.




1 Accounting policies continued.

Notes to the financial statements

Revenue

Revenue comprises sales of goods to customers outside the
Group less an appropriate deduction for actual and expected
returns, discounts and loyalty scheme voucher costs, and is stated
net of Value Added Tax and other sales taxes. Sales of furniture
and online sales are recorded on delivery {0 the customer,

Exceptional items

Exceptional income and charges arse those items that are one-off in
nature and create significant volatility in reported earnings and are
therefore reported separately in the income statement. This includes
costs relating to strategy changes that are not regular running costs
of the undertying business and pension credits arising on changes to
the UK defined benefit scheme, '

Dividends

Final dividends are recorded in the financial statemenits in the
period in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders.
Interim dividends are recorded in the period in which they are
approved and paid.

Pensions

Funded pension plans are in place for the Group's UK employees
and some employees overseas. The assets of these pension plans
include a property partnership interest and various equities

and bonds. The equities and bonds are managed by third-party
investrment managers and are held separately in trust.

Regular valuations are prepared by independent professionally
qualified actuaries in respect of the defined benefit schemes using
the projected unit credit method. These determine the levet of
contribution required te fund the benefits set out in the rules of the
plans and allow for the periodic increase of pensions in payment.
The service cost of providing retirerent benefits to employees
during the year, together with the cost of any benefits relating to
past service, is charged to operating profit in the year.

A credit representing the expected return on the assets of the
retirement benefit schemes during the year is included within interest.
This is based on the market value of the assets of the schemes at
the start of the financial year.

A charge is also made within interest repraesenting the expected
increase in the liabilities of the retirement benefit schemes during
the year. This arises from the liabilities of the schemes being ona
year closer to payment.

The difference between the market value of the assets and the
present value of accrued pension liabilities is shown as an asset
or liability in the balance sheet. Assets are only recognised if they
are recoverable,

Actuarial gains and lcsses are recognised immediately in the
statement of recognised income and expense.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Intangible assets

A. Goodwilt Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess
of the cost of acquisitions over the Group's interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and fiabilities (including intangible assets) of the
acquired entity at the date of the acquisition. Goodwill is recognised
as an asset and assessed for impairment at least annually. Any
impairment is recognised immediately in the income statemant.
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Upon disposal of a subsidiary the attributable goodwil is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss arising on disposal. Goodwill
wiitten off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 31 March 1998
has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subsequent profit or foss on disposal.

B. Brands Acquired brand values are held on the balance sheet
at cost and amortised on a straight-fine basis over their estimated
useful lives. Any impairment in value is recognised immediately in
the income staterment.

C. Software intangibles Where computer software is not an integral
part of a related item of computer hardware, the software is treated
as an intangible asset. Capitalised software costs include external
direct costs of material and services and the payroll and payroll-
related costs for employees who are directly associated with

the project.

Capitalised software development costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their expected economic lives, normally between three
to five years. Computer software under development is held at cost
less any recognised impairment loss,

Property, plant and equipment

The Group's policy is to state property, plant and equipment at
cost less accumudated depreciation and any recognised impairment
loss. Assatsin the course of construction are held at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. '

A Land and bufidings The Group's pelicy is not to revalue property
for accounting purposes.

B. Intersst Interest is not capitalised.

C. Dapreciation Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
tangible non-current assets (including investment properties), less
estimated residual values, by equal annual instalments as follows:

— freehold land — not depreciated;

- freehold and leasehold buildings with & remaining lease term over
50 years - depreciated to their residual value over their estimated
remaining economic lives;

- leasshold buildings with a remaining lease term of less than
50 years - over the remaining period of the lease; and

- fixtures, fittings and equipment - 3 to 25 years according to the
estimated life of the asset.

Residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed annually.
Depreciation is charged on all additions to, or disposals of,
depreciating assets in the year of purchase or disposal.

Any impairmant in value is charged to the income statement,

D. Assets held undler leases Where assets are financed by leasing
agreements where the risks and rewards are substantially transferred
to the Group (finance leases) the assets are treated as if they had
been purchased outright, and the corresponding liability to the
leasing company is included as an obligation under finance leases.
Depreciation on leased assets is charged to the income statement
on the same basis as owned assets. Leasing payments are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is
charged 10 the income statement.
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1 Accounting policies continued

All other leases are operating leases and the costs in respect

of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The value of any lease incentive received to take on
an operating leass (for example, rent-free periods) is recognised
as deferred income and is released over the life of the lease.

Investment properties
Investment properties are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Leasehold prepayments
Payments made to acquire leasehold land are included in
prepayments at cost and are amortised over the life of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable

value using the retall method, which is computed on the basis of
selling price less the appropriate trading margin. Al inventories are
finished goods.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settied share-based payments to certain
employees. A fair value for the equity-setiled share awards is
measured at the date of grant. The Group measures the fair value
of each award using the Black-Scholes modet where appropriate.

The fair value of each award is recognised as an expense over the
vesting period on a straight-line basis, after allowing for an gstimate
of the share awards that will eventually vest. The level of vesting is
reviewed annually; and the charge is adjusted to refiect actual and
estimated levels of vesting.

Foreign currencies

The resuits of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the weighted
average of monthly exchange rates for sales and profits. The balance
sheets of overseas subsidiaries are translated at year end exchange
rates. The resulting exchange differences are dealt with through
reserves and reported in the consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are tranglated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign curercy
assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet date are translated at
the closing balance sheet rate. The resulting exchange gain or loss
is recognised within the income statement.

Taxation
The tax charge comprises current tax payable and deferred tax.

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the amounts
payable to tax authorities in respect of the Group’s taxable profits
and is based on an interpretation of existing tax laws.

Deferred tax is recogrised on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its
tax base at tax rates that are expected to apply when the asset is
reatised or the liabity settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is not recogrisad in respect of:
— the initial recognition of goodwill that is not tax deductible; and

- the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a tansaction which
is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction
does not affect accounting or taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets are oy recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax asset
can be utiised.

Deferred tax liabilities are not provided in respect of undistributed
profits of non-UK resident subsidiaries where {j the Group is able
to control the timing of distribution of such profits; and (i) it is

not probable that a taxable distibution will be made in the
foreseeable future.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabiliies are recognised on the Group's balance
sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

A. Trace receivables Trade receivables recorded inftially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Generally, this results
in their recognition at nominal value less any allowance for any
doubtful debts.

3. Investments and other financial assets Investments and other
financial assets are classified as either ‘available for sale’, 'fair value
through profit or loss' or ‘held to maturity’. They are initially measured
at fair value, including transaction costs, with the exception of ‘fair
valua through profit and loss'. Financial assets hetd at fair value
through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed.

Where sacurities are designated as “fair value through profit or loss',
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in
net profit or loss for the pericd. For 'available for sale” investments,
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised
directly in equity, until the security is disposed of or is determined

to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is inctuded in the net profit or loss for the period.
Equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured

by other means are held at cost. 'Held to maturity' investments are
measured at amortised oost using the effective interest method.

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less impairment.
Dividends received from the pre-acquisition profits of subsidiaries
are deducted from the cost of investmant.

€. Classification of financial liablities and equity Financial liabilities and
equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arangements entered into. An equity instrument is any
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contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liahilities.

D. Bank borrowings Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts
are initially recorded at the fair value, which equals the proceeds
receivad, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue
costs, are accounted for on an effective interest rate method and
are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not settiad in the period in which they arise.

E. Loan notes Long-term loans are initially measured at fair valus and

are subsequently held at amortised cost unless the loan is hedged
by a derivative financial instrument in which case hedge accounting
treatment wil apply.

FF. Tracks payatyes Trade payables are recorded initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Generally this results
in their recognition at their nominal value.
1 Accounting policies continued

G, Equily instruments Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the consideration received, net of direct issue costs.

_ Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group primarily uses interest rate swaps and forward foreign
currency contracts to manage its exposures {0 fluctuating interest
and foreign exchange rates. Thesa instruments are initially
recognised at fair valug on the trade date and are subsequeantly
remeasured at their fair value at the balance sheet date. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss is dependent on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and the nature of
the item being hedged.

The Group designates certain hedging derivatives as either:

— a hedge of a highty probable forecast transaction or change in the
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability {a cash fiow hedge);

- a hedge of the exposure 10 change in the fair value of a recognised

asset or liability (a fair valus hedge); or

- a hedge of the exposure on the translation of net investments
in foreign entities {a net investment hedge).

Undertying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the
Group is a going concern without any intention of materially curtailing
the scale of its operations.

For those of the Group's derivative instruments stated at fair value,
the fair value will be determined by the Group applying discounted
cash flow analysis using quoted market rates as an input into the
valuation model.

In determining the fair value of a derivative, the appropriate quoted

market price for an asset held is the bid price, and for a liability issued

is the offer price.

At inception of a hedging relationship, the hedging instrument and
the hedged item are documented and prospective effectiveness
testing is performed. During the life of the hedging relationship,
effectiveness testing is continued to ensure the instrument remains
an sffective hedge of the transaction.

In crder to qualify for hedge accounting. the following conditions
must be met:
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- formal designation and docurmentation at inception of the hedging
relationship, detailing the risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge;

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk;

- for a cash flow hedge, a forecast transaction that is the subject
of the hedge must be highly probable;

- the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured; and

- the hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis and detarmined
actually to have been highly effective throughout its life.

A. Cash flow hedges Changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future
cash flows are recognised directly in equity and any ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the incoma statement. If the firm
commitment or forecast transaction that is the subject of a cash flow
hedge results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability,
then, at the time the asset or liabifity is recognised, the associated
gains or losses on tha derivative that had previously been recognised
in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or
liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset
or aliability, amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income
statement in the same period in which the hedged items affect net
profit or loss.

3. Fair value hedges For an effective hedge of an exposure to
changes in the fair value, the hedged item is adjusted for changes in
fair value attributable to the risk being hedged with the corresponding
entry in profit or loss. Gains and losses from remeasuring the
derivative, or for non-derivatives the foreign curmency component

of its carmying amount, are recognised in profit or loss.

C. Net investiment hedges Changss in the fair value of derivative
or non-derivative financial instruments that are designated and
effective as hedges of the net investments are recognised directly
in equity and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the income staterment.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income
statement as they arise.

Madge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer
expected o occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is transferred to net profit or loss for the period.

The Group does not use derivatives to hedge income statement
translation exposurss.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reascnable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions which have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are discussed below:
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1 Accounting policies continued

A. Impairment of gocdail The Group is required to test, at

least annually, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment.

The recoveralle amount is determined based on valug in use
calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of future
cash flows and the choice of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of these cash flows. Actual outcomes
could vary from those calculated. See note 12 for further details.

B. impairment of property, plant and equpment Property, plant

and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. When a review for impairment is conducted, the
recoverable amount is determined based on value in use calculations
prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and astimates.
See note 13 for further details.

C. Depreciation of property. plant and equipment Depreciation is
provided 50 as to write down the assets to their resiclual values over
their estimated useful lives as set out above. The selection of these
residual values and estimated lives requires the exercise of
management judgement. See note 13 for further details.

0. Post-retirement bersfits The datermination of the pension cost
and defined benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit pension
schemes depends on the selection of certain assumptions which
include the discount rate, Inflation rate, salary growth, mortality and
expected return on scheme assets. Differences arising from actual
experiences or future changes in assumptions will be reflected in
subseguent periods. See note 10 for further details.

E. Refunds and ioyally scheme accruals Accruals for sales returns
and loyalty scheme redemption are estimated on the basis of
historical returns and redemptions and these are recorded so as to
aliocate them to the same period as the original revenus is recorded.
These accruals are reviewed regularty and updated to reflect
management’s latest best estimates, however, actual returns and
redemptions could vary from these estimates.

Non-GAAP performance measures

The directors believe that the adjusted profit measures provide
additional useful information for shareholders on the underlying
performance of the busingss. These measures are consistent with
how undertying business performance is measured intemally. The
adjusted profit before tax measure is not a recognised profit measure
under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with adjusted profit
measures used by other companies. The adjustments made to
reported profit before tax are to exclude the following:

- exceptional income and charges — These are one-off
in nature and therefore create significant volatility in report
earnings; and -

— profits and losses on the disposal of properties - These can
vary significantly from year o year, again creating volatility in
reported earnings.
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2 Segmental information e o ﬁ

The Group's primary reporting segments are geographic, with the Group operating in two geographic areas being the UK and International,
The International segment consists of the Marks & Spencer owned businesses in the Republic of Ireland, Europe and Asia, together with
franchised operations. The geographic segments disclose revenue, operating profit and segment assets and liabilities by destination and
reflect management responsibility. Within each geographic segment the Group sells both food and general merchandise and secondary
segment disclosure is given for revenue. Given that both food and general merchandise are sold from the same locations it is not practical
to provide segmental information on operating assets and capital expenditure at this lavel.

The geographic segment results are as follows:

Revenue Coerating profit Segment assets Segment liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2006 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m £m £&m £m
UK Retail
Before property disposats and exceptional
items 8,164.3 8,300.1 652.8 972.8
Profit on property disposals - - 6.8 280 e
Exceptional costs' o O <X ) N i T o
Exceptional pension credit! TS 2313 7 950 -

8,164.3 8,309.1 755.0 10958 6,240.1 65742 {1,649.5) (1,927.0)

Intemational Retail

Owned stores” 6255  406.7 458 445 - o
Franchised stores T T 7T 21237 2862 703 719

Before property disposals 897.8 7129 116.1 116.4

Loss on property disposals - (0.4) (1.0)

897.8 7129 115.7 115.4 481.6 3971 (116.2} (77.7)

Total 89,0621 90220 870.7 12112 §,721.7 6971.3 (1,765.7} (2,004.7)
Total non-operating assets/{iabilities)® 3,166.8 2.8341 (3,391.8) (3,19.3)
Total assets/(liabilities) - 9,888.5 98054 (5,157.5) (5.196.0)

1 See note 5 for further explanation.

2 Owned siores consist of the Marks & Spencer owned businessas in the Republic of Irefand, Hong Kong, China and, since 29 February 2008, Greece, a number of other Batkan
states and Switzerland, and since 26 March 2008, the Czech Republic, Stovakia, Latvia and Lithuania, which were included in franchised stores up to that date.

3 Non-operating assets and liabilities include balances in respect of financing arkt taxation,

Revenue originates in the following geographical segments: United Kingdom £8,438.6m (ast year £8,595.3m) and International £625.5m
{last year £426.7m). The value of goods exported from the UK, including shipments io international subsidiaries, amounted to £560.7m (ast
year £499.7m),

Included within UK Retail is an operating profit of £24.8m (last year £28.3m) in respect of fees received from HSBC in relation to M&S Money,
Other segment items:

2009 2008
United Unileg

Kingdom Intemnational Totat Kingdom  Intermational Tota
om fam £ £m £m £m

Revenue
General merchandise 3,918.3 6255 4,5438 40593 491.7 4,551.0
Food 4,246.0 2723 4,518.3 42498 2212 44710
8,164.3 897.8 9,062.1 8,309.1 7129 90220
Expenditure on intangible assets excluding goodwill (see nate 12) 120.2 0.5 120.7 83.7 - 83.7
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (see note 13} 491.6 39.7 5313 919.9 509 g970.8
Amortisation (see note 12) 271 0.2 273 21.3 - 21.3

Depreciation (see note 13) 357.3 244 381.7 281.7 14.6 296.3
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3Expenseanalysis ) __ e .
2009 2008
Before Before
property  Property property Property
disposals disposals disposals disposals
and and and and
exceptional exceptional exceptional  exceptional
items items Total iterns items Total
£m £m £m fm fm £m
Revenue _ ] o 9,062.1 - 90821 90220 = - 9,022.0
Cost of sales {5,690.2) - (5,890.2) [55352) - [(5,535.2)
Grossprofit B 3,371.9 - 3,379 _ 34868 - 34868
Selling and marketing expenses i . {(2,074.4) - {2,0744) (19127) - {19127
Administrative expenses o o {570.1} - {570.1) _ (534.5) - (534.5)
Other operating income 415 - 1.5 40,6 - 49.6
Profit on property disposals - 6.4 6.4 - 270 27.0
Exceptional costs {see note 5) - (1359) (135.9} - - -
Exceptional pension credit (see note 9) - 231.3 231.3 - 95.0 95.0
Operating profit 768.9 1018 870.7 1,089.2 122.0 12112
The cost of sales above includes inventories recognised as an expense in the year.
The selling and marketing expenses and administrative expenses in the table above are further analysed in the table below:
2009 2008
Sefingand  Adminis- Seling and Adminis-
marketing trative markeating trative
expenses  oxpenses Totad expenses EXPENSas Total
£m £m £m tm &m £m
Employee costs {see note 9A) 923.2 2305 1,153.7 920.4 230.1 11505
Occupancy costs 439.2 77.5 516.7 366.9 64.8 431.7
Repairs, renewals and maintenance of property 76.6 19.1 95.7 79.0 10.8 98.8
Depreciation 3435 38.2 381.7 266.7 29.6 296.3
Amortisation 24.6 2.7 27.3 19.2 21 213
Other costs 267.3 2021 469.4 260.5 188.1 448.6
Operating expenses 2,074.4 570.1 2,6445 19127 5345 24472
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4 Profi_t _Iggﬁ::e_ ta_xation

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before taxation:

2009 2008
£m em
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains} 36 B8.0)
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment
- owned assets 3715 290.4
- under finance leases 10.2 59
Amortisation of intangibles 273 21.3
Profit on property disposals (6.4) (27.0)
Cperating lease rentals payable
— property 200.5 167.5
- fixtures, fittings and eguipment 10.1 8.4
Exceptional costs (see note 5) 1359 -
Exceptional pension credit (see note 5) {231.3) {95.0)

included in administrative expenses is the auditors’ remuneration, including expensas for audit and non-audit services, payable to the
Company’s auditors PricowaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates as follows:

2009 2008
m £m
Statutory audit services
Annual audit of the Company and the consolidated accounts 0.9 0.8
0.9 0.8
Non-audit-related services
Other services pursuant to legislation ' 0.1 0.3
Tax advisory services 0.3 0.4
Other services 0.2 0.1
0.6 0.8
5 Exceptional items
2000 2008
£m tm
Property (92.5) -
Lagistics, [T and other (32.3) -
People {11.1} -
Exceptional costs (135.9) -
Changes in the UK defined benefit plan 231.3 95.0
Exceptional pension credit 231.3 95.0

The exceptional costs relate to a strategic restructure and are not regular running costs of the underlying business, these include:

- £92.5m property-related costs including onercus lease provisions, property, plant and equipment disposals, leasehcld premium write-offs
and decommissioning costs;

- £32.3m costs related to the rationalisation of IT and logistics networks; and
= £11.1m redundancy costs.

The exceptional pension credit has arisen due to changes in the UK defined benefit pension plan relating to how members' benefits build up.
In January 2009 the Group announced that it had made changes to the scherne by capping employses' annual increases in pensionable pay
to 1% and changing the early retirement benefits for members who joined the scheme before 1996, There is a credit to the income
statement to reflect the impact of adjusting employees' projected final pensionable salaries.

Last year the exceptional pension credit arose due to changes in the plan where, to the extent that members chose the option to limit their
future pensionable salary increases to inflation, there was also a credit to the income statement.
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£m £m
Bank and other interest receivable . L ) L 148 55
Pension financs income (net) (see note 10E) 35.4 58.9
Finance income 50.0 64.4
Interest on bank borowings 6.2 1.9
Interest payable on syndlicated bank facility 41.0 30.0
Interest payable on medium-term notes 1139 84.0
Interest payable on finance leases 4.9 34
Fair value movemenits on financial instruments 10.5 -
Unwinding of discount on partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 38.0 27.3
Finance costs 214.5 146.6
Net finance costs 164.5 82.2
7 Income tax expense
A. Taxation charge
2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax _ o L o o N
UK oorporatlon tax at 28% {last year 30%) ]
— current year o T T T T 1274 1230
~prior years T oo T T T T (10.7)  (13.9)
o ] 116.7 1099
Overseas current taxation s T/ T o 5.1 7.5
Total current taxation 1218 117.4
Deferred tax {see note 23) B
— current year 70.1 184.0
— prior years 7.5 8.7
Total deferred taxation 776 190.7
Total income tax expense 199.4 308.1
B. Taxation reconciliation
2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before tax 7062 1,1291
Taxation at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 28% (ast year 30%) _ 197.7 338.7
Depreciation, charges and other amounts on non-qualifying fixed assets T {4.0) 0.6
Other income and expenses not taxable or deductible T e T 29" 1.3
Exceptional costs i T 75 -
Overseas profits taxed at lower rates o T T i "(1.5) 68
Impact of change in UK corporation tax rate - (16.7}
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (2.2 (6.4)
Total income tax expense 1994 3081

The post-exceptional effective tax rate was 28.2% {last year 27.3%) and the pre-exceptional effective tax rate was 27.0% (ast year 27.0%).
In the prior year, the change in the standard UK corporation tax rate to 28% from April 2008 resulted ina deferred tax credit of £18.7m,

reducing the total effective tax rate by 1.5%.
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8 Dividends
2009 2008 2009 2008
per share per share £m £m
Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend o S 7.9p 72p 2252 2038
Paid interim dividend ' T - 4.6p 4.9p 131.1 140.2°

12.5p 12.1p 356.3 344.0

In addition, the directors have proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended 28 March 2009 of 5.3p per share amounting to a
dividend of £151.1m. In line with the requirements of IAS 10 - ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’, this dividend has not been recognised
within these resufts,

VQﬁEmployeAgsr

A. Aggregate remuneration
The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of Group employees were:

2009 2008
Total Total
fm m
Wages and salaries 978.2 930.8
Social security costs ’ 69.1 62.3
Pension costs 67.2 1031
Share-based payments 14.3 290
Employee welfare and other personnel costs 378 357
Ex-gratia costs 8.4 105
Capitalised staff costs {21.3) (20.9)
Aggregate remuneration 1,1583.7 11,1505
Exceptional redundancy costs (see note 5) 1.1 -
Excepticnal pension cradit {see note 5} {231.3) (95.0)
Total 933.5 1,0555
Detaits of key management compensation are given in note 29E.
B. Average number of employees
2009 2008
UK stores
—management and supervisory categories . __ . . _ __ c e 5,528 5,267
- other 63,969 62,820
UK head ofice” . o I - _ _
- management and supervisory categories ' o o o 2,577 2599
~other o T ) T ) ' 1,036 927
Overseas T T T B 4754 3776
Total average number of employees 77,864 75,389

If the number of hours worked was corwerted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time employees
would have been 54,153 (last year 52,276}

C. Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments of directors of the Company are summarised below. Further details are given in the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual
report Remuneration report on pages 62 to 71.

2009 2008
£000 £000

Highest paid directer .~~~ o _ 1,765 1,375
Aggregate emoluments of other directors 2,409 1,775

One director {last year one) accrued retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme.
The highest paid director has not exercised any share options during the year.
The highest paid director was awarded 1,184,486 performance shares in relation to the Group's long-term incentive plan.
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10 Reﬁrgmerﬁeneﬁts

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme. This has
a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 April 2002, and a defined contribution section which has been
open to new members with effect from 1 April 2003.

The defined berefit section operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 21,000 active members (ast year 24,000), 57,000
deferred members {ast year 58,000) and 42,000 pensioners {ast year 39,000). At the year end, the defined contribution section had some
8,000 active members {last year 8,000) and some 1,000 deferred members {ast year 1,000).

The Group also operates a small funded defined benefit pension scheme in the Republic of Ireland. Retirement benefits also include a UK
post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits.

Within the total Group retirement benefit cost. excluding the exceptional pension credits, of £31.8m (ast year £44.2m), £14.0m (ast ysar
£28.0m) relates to the UK defined benefit section, £13.0m (last year £11.7m) to the UK defined contribution section and £4.8m {last year
£4.5m) to other retirement benefit schemes.

A. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities

2009 2008
m em
Total market value of assets 3,977.0 50455
Present value of scheme liabilities (4,1124) (4,542.3)
Net funded pension plan (deficit/asset (135.4) 503.2
Unfunded retirement benefits ) (1.0} (1.3
Post-retirement healthcare (15.8) (18.4)
Net retirement benefit (deficit)/asset {152.2) 483.5
Analysed on the balance sheet as: )
Retirenent benefit asset - 504.0
Retirement benefit deficit (152.2) {(20.5)

(1522) 4835

B. Financial assumptions

A full actuarial valuation of the UK defined benefit pension scheme was carried out at 31 March 2006 and showed a deficit of £704.0m.
The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent actuarial valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuaries to take account of the requirernents of 1AS 19 - 'Retirement Benefits' in order to assess the
liahilities of the schemes:

2009 2008

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 10 31t045
Rate of increase in pensions in payment for service

-_Ee_Aﬁril 1997 :: TrTTYTTIOTTTT T T 2.6 2.8

- between Aprilvjvgg;? an'a_J_UIsde()-Sk T T T e e 297 7 35

- post July 2005 ) o T T T s r e e 23~ 24

Discountrate ' o - T T T T T 68 68

Igﬂggqn‘réie_: L T T TTTT o T e T T 28 35

Long-term healthcare cost increases o Tttt T Tm o T 797 85

The amount of the deficit varies if the main financial assumptions change, particularty the discount rate. If the discount rate increased/
decreased by 0.1% the IAS 19 deficit would decrease/increase by c. £75m.

C. Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are in line with those adopted for the last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme. One of the most significant
demographic assumptions underlying the valuation is mortality. The post-retirernent mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the
pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the period to March 2006 updated to allow for anticipated longevity improvements over the
subsequent years. The specific mortality rates used are based on the PMAS2 and PFASZ tables. adjusted to allow for the experience of
scherma pensioners. The life expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows:
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10 Retirement benefits continued

2009 2008
years years
Current pensioners (at age 65) - males e o . - 212 210
T T " females T T - , '7_ 236 285
Future pensioners (atage 65) -maes T 220 219
— females 24.3 243
D. Analysis of assets and expected rates of return
The major categories of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are:
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m % %
Property partnership interest 529.8 506.6 13 10
UK equities 480.8 7921 12 16
Overseas equities ) 6443 1,1166 16 20
Government bonds 127.2 465.4 3 9
Corporate bonds 2,278.0 20585 58 41
Cash and other {83.1} 106.3 (2) 2
3,977.0 50455 100 100
The expscted long-term rates of return are:
2009 2008
s %
Property partnership interest 71 6.0
UK equities 8.0 8.3
Cverseas equities ) 80 83
Governrment bonds T T T s 42 '7 46
Corporate bonds ' o T T—' T 6.8 _ - i 80
Cashandother T T e 4.2 50
Overall expected return 7.2 8.7

The overall expected return on assets assumption is derived as the weighted average of the expected returns from each of the main asset
classes. The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of historical performance analysis, the forward-looking views of
financial markets (as suggested by the vields available) and the views of investment organisations. Consideration is also given to the rate of
return expected to be available for reinvestment.

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 368,793 (last year 479,356) ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc through its
investment in an Aguila Life UK Equity Index Fund.

E. Analysis of amount charged against profits

2009 2008
Em £m

Operating cost

Current service cost 722 106.1

Curtailment gain ’ {5.0) (3.0

Exceptional pension credit (see note 5) (231.3} {95.0)
(164.1} 8.1

Finance cost

Expecled retunonplanassets o T/ T T (3%6)  (342.7)

Interest on scheme liabilities T T T T T 2002 0 26838

Net finance income {35.4 (58.9)

Total (199.5) (50.8)
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F. Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:

2009

21

2008

£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 50455 5227.5
Expected retumn on scheme assets' 3346 3427
Employer contributions? 921 1114
Contrbutions from scheme members .~~~ O 20 10
Benefts paid - T ) ) T {(265)_ (2204)
Actuarial loss T S T {1,280.3) _ (42258)
Exchange movement o ~ 9.6 6.2
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 3,977.0 50455

1 The actual retum on scheme assets was a loss of £945.7m ast year £73.9m).

2 Last year the Group agreed to pre-fund £200.0m of its annual contribution to the UK definad benefit pension scheme for the next thiea years. The prepayment is in respect
of annual contributions to the UK scherme at the rate of 23.7% of pensionabla salaries up to 30 September 2009 and then 23.2% up 1o the next financial year, It is estimated that

approximately £66m of the prepayment wilt relata to the year ended 3 Aprl 2010

G. Retirement benefit obligations
Changes in the present value of retirement bensfit obligations are as folows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 4,5620 55108
Current service cost . 72.2 106.1
Curtailment gain ' o 7 (5.0 (3.0)
Exceptional pension credit 231.3) (950)
Interest cost 7 o ‘ L L 2992 2838
Contrioutions from scheme members ' — T T 20 10
Benefits paid o B ST T T h - ) 7T (226.5) (220.4)
h_(éth—aﬁalwg'ain _‘_— o S T T i T ) ) ﬁ : R (353'.2) (1,028.0)
Acquisition of subsidiary T - L - 0.4
Exchange movement |~~~ —o—— oo 9.8 6.3
Present value of obligation at end of year 41292 4,562.0
Analysed as: -
Present value of théion scheme liabiites ‘t_ h T T ' _i ) _ 4,1124 ;924&3
Unfunded pengion plans o CoToTT T 107 13
Post-retirement healthcare T s T T i i 158 184
Present value of obligation at end of year 412902 45620
H. Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity
2009 2008
£m £Em
Loss at start of year (330.2) {935.6)
Net actuarial (josses)/gains recognised in the year {927.1) 605.4
Loss at end of year (1,257.3) (330.2)
I. History of experience gains and losses
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
m £m £m tm £m
Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets ] {1,280.3) (422.6) (80.4) 454.3 77.4
Experience gains/(losses) arising on scheme liabilities T o812 Bl 18.8 200 (24.0)
Changes in assumptions undertying the present vaiue of scheme liabiities ~~ 272.0  1,083.5 530 (6436) (131.5)
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in equity {927.1) 605.4 (8.6) {168.3) {78.1)
Fair value of scheme assets 3,977.0 50455 52275 460682 3856.8
Present value of scheme liabilities (4,112.4) (4.542.3) ({5487.0) (5381.3) (4.611.0
Pension scheme {deficit)/asset (135.4) 503.2 (259.5) {775.1) (654.2)
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11 Share—based_p__&!!ments

The charge for share-based payments for the year was £14.3m {last year £29.0m}. Further details of the option and share schemes that the
Group operates ara provided in the Remuneration report on pages 62 to 71 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc Annual Report.

A. Save As You Earn Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the scheme, the Board may offer options to purchase ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc once in each
financial year to those employees who enter into an HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved Save As You Eam (SAYE) savings contract,
HMRC rules limit the maximum amount saved to £250 per month. The price at which options may be offered is 80% of the average mid-
market price for three consecutive dealing days preceding the offer date. The options may normally be exercised during the period of six
months after the completion of the SAYE contract, either three or five years after entering the scheme.

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

Number of average exercise Number of  average exercise

options price options price

Qutstanding at beginning of the period 28,444,760 403.1p 33,241,616 327.6p
Granted 42,551,459 203.0p 7,718,437 517.0p
Exercised (2,075,204} 2327p {10,212,015) 234.8p
Forfeited S ~ (10,958,837) 456.4p {2,207,700) 450.7p
Expired T T T (99,317) 261.8p = (93578)  2352p
Qutstanding at end of the period . 57,863,061 252.2p 28,444,760 403.1p
Exercisable at end of period 6,169,324 2969p 948372  262.9p

For SAYE share options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 296.2p (last year 535.2p).

The fair values of the options granted during the year have been calculated using the Black-Scholes model assuming the inputs

shown below:
2009 2008
] J-yoar plan S-year plan 3-year plan 5-year plan
Grant date Nov 08 Nov 08 Nov 07 Nov 07
Share price at grant date 253p 253p 646p 646p
Exercisa price 203p 203p 517p 517p
Option life in years . 3years 5 years 3years 5 years
Riskfeerate T 2.9% 320 T 4B% 46%
Expected volatiity S S 39.2% 33.4% T216%  252%
Expected dvidendyield ~— 8.9% 8.9% T 27% 2%
Fair value of option i T T ) 54.6p 439p 16750  201.8p

Volatility has been estimated by taking the historic volatility in the Marks and Spencer Group plc share price over a three or five year period.

The resulting fair value is expensed over the service period of three or five years on the assumption that 20% of options will lapse over the

service period as employees leave the Group.

Qutstanding optiocns granted under the UK Employees’ SAYE Scheme are as follows:

Weighted average remaini
Number of options contractual life {years)

Options granted 2009 2008 2009 2008 Crtion price
January 2001 - 338,682 - 0.3 156p
January 2003 - 371,017 - 03 283p
January 2004 2,748,699 4,078,721 0.3 1.3 228p
January 2005 2,705,890 3,703,910 1.3 21 280p
January 2006 5,089,994 7,164,101 0.9 2.1 349p
January 2007 2,381,588 5,434,588 2.0 30 - 588p
January 2008 3,114,069 7353741 3.0 40 517p
January 2009 41,822,821 ' - 4.0 - 203p

57,863,061 28,444,760 3.3 28 252p
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B. Executive Share Option Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Option Scheme, last approved by shareholders in 2005, the Board may offer options to purchase
ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc to executive directors and senior managers at the market price on a date to be determined
prior to the date of the offer. No further options may be granted under any schemes other than the 2005 scheme. No awards have been
made under the 2005 scheme. Further details are set out in the Remuneration report on page 66 of the Marks and Spencer Group plc
Annual Report.

Pertormance targets are assessed over a thres year period from the date of grant with no ability to retest any grants. Once options have
vested they can be exercised during the period up to ten years from grant date.

2009 2008
Weightad Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price options exercise price

Outstanding at beginning of the period 9,623,518 .0p 12017117 341.2p
Exercised ' (142,559) 3439p (2,235,209 341.0p
Forfeited {678,888) 340.7p {152,698) 348.6p
Expired (169,288} 550.3p {5,692} 527.0p
Quitstanding at end of the period N o 8,632,783 36.8p &@_2_3_,5_1@__4 ”_§41 Op
Exercisable atendofpeiod T T 8,832,783 336.8p 8,444,937 339.4p

For executive share options exercised during the period, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 385.3p
(last year 645.5p).

The resulting fair value is expensed over the expected service period of five years on the assumption that 30% of options will lapse over the
service period as employees leave the Company.

Outstanding options granted under all Executive Share Option Schemes are as follows:

Weighted average remaining
Number of options contractual life (years)

Options granted 2009 2008 2009 2008 Option price

1997 Scheme

June 1998 - ) - 161,863 - 02 B57p

NO\{?mb.e_r_1998m- _ j—_ T . ToToTTr o h - 77.425u - N 6.6 404p

Jung 1999 T T i 08,880 98,880 ‘03~ 12 3%8p
2000 Scheme

September 2000 - R 232 232 15 25 215p

June 2001 T i 135989 135989 23 33 256p
December 2001 18,087 71,658 28 37—  350p
2002 Scheme

June 2002 579,237 650,465 3.3 42 350p

November 2002 47,150 47,150 3.7 4.7 353p

June 2003 1,398,584 1,502,053 43 5.2 297p

November 2003 36,109 36,109 4.7 5.7 270p

February 2004 33,111 33,111 49 5.8 270p

July 2004 4,417,613 4831318 5.3 T 83 | 347

November 2004 806,193 859,684 5.7 8.7 337p

June 2005 1,061,508 1,178,581 6.3 72 T 359p

8,632,783 9,623,518 5.0 5.9 335p
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C. Performance Share Plan

The Parformance Share Plan is the primary long-term incentive plan for approximately 100 of the most senior managers and was first
approved by shareholders in 2005, Under the plan, annual awards, based on a percentage of salary, may be offered. The extent to which
the awards vest is based on adjusted earnings per share growth over three years. The value of any dividends earned on the vested shares
during the three years will also be paid on vesting. Further details are set out in the Remuneration report on page 66 of the Marks and
Spencer Group plc Annual Report. Awards under this scheme have bbeen made in each year since 2005.

During the year, 5,835,938 shares (last year 3,414,413) were awarded under the plan. The weighted average fair value of the shares
awarded was 368.9p (last year 704.0p).

D. Deferred Share Bonus Plan

The Deferred Share Bonus Plan was introduced in 2005/06 as part of the Annual Bonus Scheme for approximately 450 of the most sanior
managers. As part of the scheme, the managers are required to defer a proportion of any bonus paid into shares which will be held for
three years. There are no further performance conditions on these shares, other than continued employment, and the value of any dividends
garned during the deferred period will be paid on vesting.

During the year, 288,656 shares (last year 2,182,379) were awarded under the plan in retation to the annual bonus. The fair value of the
shares awarded was 381.6p (ast year 706.6p).

E. Restricted Share Plan

The Restricted Share Plan was established in 2000 as part of the reward strategy for retention and recruitment of senior managers who are
vital to the success of the business. The plan operates for senior managers below executive divector level. Awards under the plan are made
as part of ongoing reviews of reward packages, and for recruitment. The shares are heid in trust for a period of between one and thwee years,
at which point they are released to the employes, subject to them still being in employment. The value of any dividends earned during the
restricted period will also be paid at the time of vesting.

During the year, 1,755,667 shares (last year 328,165) have been awarded under the plan. The weighted average fair value of the shares
awarded was 337.8p (ast year 604.6p).

F. United Kingdom Share Incentive Plan
The Share Incentive Plan is a discretionary, all-employee plan, approved by HMRC, under which Freeshares may be allocated by the
Company. The last award was made in June 2003, which vested in June 2008.

G. Share Matching Deal Plan

The Share Matching Deal Plan was introduced in 2006 for those employees who were eligible to receive a cash-only bonus. The scheme
was not open to those employees who participated in the Deferred Share Bonus Plan. The plan allows employees to invest a proportion of
their bonus in shares of Marks and Spencer Group plc. These investment shares must be held by the participant for three years, during
which time they will receive dividends. At the end of the three year holding period, if the participant is still in employment with the Company,
and still holds the investment shares, they will receive one matching share for every four that they bought.

No shares were awarded under the Share Matching Deat Plan during the year.

H. Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust

The Marks and Spencer Employee Benefit Trust (the Trust) holds 4,208,250 {ast year 8,795,896) shares with a book value of £27.8m (ast
year £60.0m) and a market value of £11.1m (ast year £34.9m). These shares were acquired by the Trust in the market. In addition, the Trust
has entered into a call option to purchase up to 6.3 milion of Marks and Spencer Group plc shares, The Trust used funds provided by the
Company to meet the Group's cbligations. Awards are granted to employees at the discretion of the Company and shares awarded to
employees by the Trust in accordance with the wishes of the Company under senior executive share schemes, including the Restricted
Share Plan, Dividends are waived on all of these plans except for the Deferred Bonus Share Plan and Restricted Share Plan where dividends
are paid via a Dividend Reinvestment Plan for awards made in the form of forfeitable shares.
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Computer
software
Computer under
Gooawil Brands software  development Tota
fm £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2007
Cost or valuation 69.5 80.0 51.2 254 226.1
Accumidated amortisation - (13.3) {18.7} - (32.0)
Net book value 69.5 66.7 325 254 1941
Year ended 29 March 2008
Opening net book value 69.5 66.7 325 254 194.1
Additions 48.4 - 18.6 65.1 13241
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 06 - 0.6
Transfers - - 125 {12.5) -
Amortisation charge - (5.4} (15.9) - (21.3)
Clasing net book value 117.9 61.3 48.3 78.0 305.5
At 29 March 2008
Cost or valuation 117.9 800 82.9 78.0 358.8
Accumulated amortisation - (18.7) {34.6) - {(53.3)
Net book value 117.9 61.3 48.3 78.0 305.5
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value 117.9 61.3 48.3 78.0 305.5
Additions 1.3 - 1.9 118.8 1220
Transfers - - 18.0 (18.0} -
Exchange difference - - 0.1 - 0.1
Amortisation charge - 5.3} (22.0) - {27.3)
Closing net book value 119.2 56.0 46.3 178.8 400.3
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuation 119.2 80.0 1029 1788 480.9
Accumulated amortisation - (24.0) (56.6) - (80.6)
Net book value 119.2 56.0 46.3 178.8 400.3
Goodwill relates to the following business units:
Marks and  Marks and
Spencer Spencer
i Czech
Peruna B.Y. Republic a.s. Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost and net book value at 29 March 2008 69.5 343 141 117.9
Additions - 0.1 1.2 13
Cost and net book value at 28 March 2009 69.5 344 15.3 119.2

Goodwill is not armortised, but tested annually for impairment with the recoverable amount being determined from value in use calculations.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are thosa regarding the discount rate, growth rates and changes in income and costs.

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts based on financial forecasts approved by management covering a three year period,
which takes account of both past performance and expectations for future market developments. Cash flows beyond this three year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%, which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Group's retail businesses.
The Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital is used to discount the future cash flows. A risk adjustment is then made for the
countries in which the business unit operates; per una discount rate 10.2% (ast year 9.5%); Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos B.V. 12.2%
and Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a.s. 13.2%. Based on the discounted cash flows the vatuations indicate sufficient headroom that

any reasonably possible change in the assurnptions is unlikely to result in an impaiment.

Brands consist of the per una brand which is being amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years.
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E Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures, Asselsin the
Land and  fittings and course of

buildings  equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2007
Cost _ _ 24682 36533 1075 86,2200
Accumulated depreciation (95.3) (2.089.2) - (2,184.5
Net book value 23729 1,564 107.5 4,0445

Year ended 29 March 2008 _

Opening net book value

23720 71,5641 1075 40445

Exchange difference 184 101 B9 344

Additions T T T e T 826 6928 1954 Q708
Acquisition of subsidiaries ' 18.0 11.5 0.2 29.7

Transfers 11.8 110.8 {122.6) -
Disposals (73.8) (5.2) 0.1 (79.1)
Depreciation charge (8.5) (287.8) - (296.3)
Closing net book value 24214  2,096.3 1863 4,704.0

At 29 March 2008 L o
Cost T T T T T 25252 44733 1863 7,184.8

Accumulated depreciation (103.8 {2,377.0) - (2,480.8)
Nst book valus 24214 2,093 1863 4,704.0

Year ended 28 March 2009 i ) - )

Opening net book value T T T 24214 20963 1863 4,704.0
Exchange difference S - e 283 214 8.4 56.1

Additions T B ] 457 3952 904 5313
Transfers 322 1424  (174.6) -
Disposals ' (58.9) (17.3) - (75.7)
Depreciation charge ] ' ' ' (9.2 (372.5) - (381.7)
Closing net book value 2,4580 2,265.5 1105 4,834.0
At 28 March 2009

Cost - - ~ 2,5666 48119 1105 7,4800
Accumulated depreciation ) o (108.6) (2,546.9) - (2,655.0)
Net book value 2,458.0 2,265.5 1105 4,834.0

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £45.4m (ast year £42.2m) and equipment of £58.7m (last year £35.6m) where the
Group is a lessee under a finance lease.

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £32.8m (ast year £23.5m) werg financed by new finance leases.

14 Investment property

2009 2008
m £m
Cost
At start and end of year 253 253
Depreciation
Al start of year @3 02
Depreciation charge T S T T {0.2) (0.1)
At end of year (0.5 (0.3
Net book vatue 248 250

The investment properties were valued at £23.1m (ast year £31.7m) as at 28 March 2009 by qualified professional valuers working for CB
Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, acting in the capacity of external valuers. All such valuers are chartered surveyors, being members of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The properties were valued on the basis of market value (calculated based on subleases in
place at the year end). All valuations were carried out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards. As the investment
properties are held at depreciated historical cost, this valuation has not been reflected in the camying value of the assets. No impairment has
been recognised on the one property which is carried at a higher value than its market value at 28 March 2009, However, the Group intends
to re-occupy the property during 2009/10 at which point its value in use will exceed the net book valus. The Group received rental income of
£1.2m (last year £1.5m) in respect of these investment properties.
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15 Investment in joint ventures

2009 2008

fm £m

At start of year ) ) 96 = 93
Investment in new joint venture ’ o o L a4 -
Share of (oss)y/profit o T B {0.2) 0.3
At end of year 13.8 96

The joint ventures represent a 50% equity interest in Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company incorporated in Great Britain,
and a 50% equity interest in Lima (Bradford) S.a.rJ, a property investment company incomorated in Luxembourg, acquired during the year.
The partner in the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture is J Sainsbury plc and the partner in the Lima (Bradford) S.a.r.l joint venture is
ProLogis UK Holdings S.A.

in refation to the Group's interest in joint ventures, the assets and liabilities are shown below:

2000 2008
om £m
Non-currentassets Ll 49 27
Cimedassets . T T T oo T 91 72
Current liabilities . (0.2) 03)
Net assets 138 9.6
16 Other financialassets L e
2009 2008
em £m

Non-current
Unlisted investments L 30 30
Other investments' ' B ' . o ' 11.1 60.0
141 63.0
ot T T T oo Tt T T S
Amaounts owed by parent company T ~ 26193 25846
D’EtédUKEaburi{iés" T N T ’ h -—_ 471 435
Unlisted investments 6.0 5.3

2,6724 2,633.4

1 Cther investments are the shares in Masrks and Spencer Group pic held for employse share schemes.
Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in their value taken to the income statement.

17 Trade and other [t_a_c_e_ivables

2009 2008
£m om
Non-current . -
Other receivables - - A 135
Prepaid pension contributions T T 60.7 1240
Prepaid leasehold premiums 2476 27041
Other prepayments and acerued income 14 2.4
336.8 410.0
Curent = - - T/ T ) -
i'_rade rec%blés__ ' T ) N - T T - 877 879
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables - ' - @2 @83
Trade receivables — net 83.5 84.6
Other receivables 37.0 32.7
Prepaid pension contributions 65.7 76.0
Prepaid leasehold premiums 10.6 109
Other prepayments and accrued income 884 103.2
285.2 307 .4

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £9.9m (last year £12.6m) and are mainty stering denominated.
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and cther financial institutions, with an initial matunty of three months or

less and credit card payment received within 48 hours. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 0.33% (ast year 5.4%); these deposits have an average maturity of three days (last

year 26 days).
19 Trade and other payables
2000 2008
£m £m
Current
Trade payables ' 3570 2269
Other payables ' 4266 4255
Social security and other taxes ' 40.4 56.1
Accruals and deferred income 249.5 2671
1,073.5 975.6
Non-current
Other payables' 2438 191.2

1 Includes the fair value of the put option £56.3m (ast year £,52.2m) axercisabla on 4 Aprii 2013 and last year contingent consideration for the acquisition of Marks and Spencer Czech

Republic a.s. £4.0m payable by Apxil 2010,

20 Bor:roﬁvgiygs and__ot_h_er_ﬁpz_mc@ Iiab_ili_t_ies

2008
£m m
Current
Bank loans and overdrafts’ T o ’ 147.9 2574
Syndicated bank faciity” N - T 7812 6150
Finance leass liabilities 137 6.2
9428 6786
Partnership liakility to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 719 50.0
1,014.7 9286
Non-current
Bank loans 1.2 -
8.375% £375m medium-term notes 20112 382.6 3820
5.875% £400m medium-term notes 2012° M7.9 4214
5.625% £400m medium-term notes 2014 399.0 3988
6.250% US$500m medium-term notes 20174 354.4 253.0
7.125% US$300m medium-term notes 2037¢ 212.0 1511
8.875% £250m puttable callable reset medium-term notes 2037%% ) 2528 2529
Finance leass liabilities B i ) o T T 882 773
i __W 21178 19365
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme T T T 680  673.2
2,1859 26097
Total 3,2006 3,538.3

1 Bank loans and overdrafts includes a £5.0m (ast year £5.0m} loan from the Hedge End Park Limited jgint venture (See notes 15 and 28).
2 Relates to a £1.2bn cormmitted bank revolving credit faciity set to mature on 26 March 2013,

3 These notes are issued under Marks and Spencer plc's £3bn European Medium-Term Note Programme and all pay interest annually.

4 Interest on these bonds is payable semi-annually,

5 Thesa notes incdude an investor put and issuer call option exercisable in December 2012,

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall dus as shown in the table on the following page. It is the Group's policy to lease
certain of its properties and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term for equipment is six years and 125 years for property.
Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent payments. The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.
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20 Bovowings and other financial liabilities contnued . __ .
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme

Last year the partnership liability of £723.2m related to an amortising liability in respect of obligations of the Marks and Spencer Scottish
Limited Partnership to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme. During the year an interest charge of £38.0m was taken to the income
statement represanting the unwinding of the discount included in this obligation at an implied average interest rate of 5.7% {ast year 5.7%).

On 25 March 2009 the terms of the Scottish Limited Partnership agreement were amended to make the payment by the Scottish Limited
Partnership of annual distributions to the Pension Scheme discretionary at the instance of Marks and Spencer pic in refation to financial
years 2010/11 onwards. This discretion is exercisable if the Group does not pay a dividend or maka any other form of return to its
shareholders. As a result, the distributions to the Pension Scheme in 2009 and 2010 remain as financid liabifities, while the remaining
fnancial instrument is now an equity instrument (see note 25).

The agreement includes a clause such that, following a defauit event {including the appointment of an administrator, quidator, receiver or
similar officer in respect of Marks and Spencer plc or Marks and Spencer Group plc and the winding up or dissolution of Marks and Spencer
plc or Marks and Spencer Group plc) or on a relevant change of law, the net present value of the outstanding distributions becomes payable
to the Pension Scheme by the Scottish Limited Partnership at the option of the Pension Scheme. On the basis of the expected cash flows
associatad with such an event, the related financial liability has been fair valued at nil.

21 Financial instruments

Treasury policy and financial risk management
The Group operates a centralised treasury function to manage the Group'’s funding requirements and financial risks in fine with the Board
approved treasury policies and procedures, and their delegated authorities.

The Group's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise borowings, cash and liquid resources and various items, such as trade
debtors and trade creditors, that arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group's
operations.

Group treasury also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts.
The purpose of these transactions is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group's operations and financing.

It remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the need to liquidate any outstanding investments. The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does not engage
in speculative trading.

The principal financial risks faced by the Group are liquidity/funding. interest rate, foreign currency and counterparty risks. The policies and
strategies for managing these risks are summarised as follows:

(&) Liquidity/tunding risk -
The rigk that the Group could be unable to settle or mest its cbligations as they fall due at a reasonable price.

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibiity and cost effectiveness to match the reguirements
of the Group.

- Operating subsidiaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed syndicated
bank facilities.

At year end, the Group had a committed syndicated bank revolving credit facility of £1.2bn set to rmature on 26 March 2013, This facility
contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable; to interest
plus rents payable. The covenant is measured semi-annually. In addition, the term out option under the £400m credit agreement which
expired on 13 February 2009 was converted into a committed facility for the same period, expiring on 11 February 2010, This facility has the
same financial covenant as the main £1.2bn facility. The Group also has a nurmber of undrawn uncommitted faciliies available to it. At year
end, these amounted to £105m (ast year £155m), all of which are due to be reviewed within a year. Atthe balance sheet date a stering
equivalent of £764m (ast year £614m) was drawn under the committed facilities and £nil (last year a futher £29m) was drawn under the
uncommitted facilities. ‘

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Group has a euro medium-term note prograrmme of £3bn, of which £1.4bn {ast year £1.4bn) was
in issuance as at the balance sheet date.
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21 Financial instruments continued

The contractual maturity of the Group's non-derivative financial liablities and derivatives is as follows:

Partnership
Kabdity 1o the
Bark loans M&S UK
and  Syndicatedt Medium-term Finance lease Pension Derivative  Derivative
overdrafts  bank facllity notas liabiities Scheme Total assets ligbilities Total
£m m m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Timing of cash flows
Within one year (257.4} 615.0) (112.6) (11.6) (650.0) (1,048.6) 643.4 (663.7) (20.3}
Between one and two years - - (112.6) (19.2) (71.9) (203.7) Q0.7 (S0.9) 0.2}
Between two and five years - - {1.088.9) (26.2) (215.7) (1,330.8) 848 {83.0) 1.8
More than five years - — {1.866.5) (2149 (719.0) (2,800.4) 747.3 (736.4) 10.9
(257.4) (15.0) (3,180.6) {271.9 (1,056.6) (5.381.5) 1,566.2 (1,574.0) (7.8)
Effect of discounting and foreign i
exchange - - 13214 188.4 3334 1,8432
At 29 March 2008 (257.4)  (615.0y {1.859.2) (83.5) (723.2) (3.538.3)
Timing of cashflows = , :
Within one year {(147.9) (781.2) (123.8) {18.3} {71.9) (1,143.1} 949.4 {919.8) 29.6
Between one and two years g (11.2} - (123.8) {16.9} (71.9) (223.8) 704 (63.6) 6.8
Between two and five years - - (1,476.8) {34.4) - (1,511.2) 114.0 (83.2) 30.8
More than five years - - {1,706.2) (209.4) - (1,915.6)] 1,003.8 (708.9) 2949
{159.1} (781.2) (3,430.6) (279.0) (143.8) (4,793.7)] 2,137.6 (1,775.5) 362.1
Effect of discounting and foreign
exchange - - 14121 1774 3.9 1,593.1
At 28 March 2009 {(159.1} (781.2) (2,0185) (101.9) (139.9) (3,200.6)

This table does not include trade and other payables (see note 19) due to the low associated liguidity risk.

{b) Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk exists where the Group can suffer financial loss through default or non-performance by financial institutions,

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to

minimise tha risk of Ioss. The counterparties are limited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A+/A1 or better
assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved on an exception basis by a Board director. Limits are reviewed

regularty by senior management. The credit risk of these financial instruments is estimated as the fair value of the assets resulting from

the contracts.

The table below analyses the Group's cash and cash equivalents and derivative assets by credit exposure excluding bank balances, store

cash and cash in transit.

Cradit rating of counterparty

AAA/AaA AA/Bga AA/Aal AA-/Ap1 AA-/Aa2 AA-/Aa3
om £m om m £m £m Total
Money market deposits® - 34 63.6 - - - 67.0
Derivative assets® 5.2 1.6 6.2 - 0.6 0.6 242
At 29 March 2008 52 15.0 69.8 - 0.6 0.6 91.2
AANAR AA/AAT AAAG2 A+/Aa3 A+Al AR
m m £m m m £m Total
Money market deposits’ - - 116.1 4.3 13.0 - 133.2
Derivative assets? 1054 259 27.7 142.0 8.8 9.8 319.6
At 28 March 2009 105.4 25.9 1433 146.1 218 9.8 452.8

1 Inchudes cash on deposit in M&S Scottish Limited Partnership.

2 Excludes derivative asset option which is embedded within the £250m puttabla callable reset medium-temm nates due 2037.

3 Exposure to A/A2 counterparty approved as an exceplion 10 reasury policy.

The Group has very low retail credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high volurme, low value and short maturity.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows: trade receivables £84m (last year £85m), other receivabies
£64m (last year £46m), cash and cash equivalents £423m (ast year £318m) and derivatives £347m {(ast year £37m).
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21 Financial instruments continued

{c) Foreign currency nsk
Transactional foreign currency exposures arise from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidiaries, and from the import
of materials and goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers.

Group treasury hedge these exposures principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covering up 1o 100% out to
18 months. Where appropriate hedge cover can be taken out longer than 18 months with Board approval. The Group is primarily exposed
to foreign exchange risk in relation to sterfing against movements in US dollar and euro.

Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the Group's forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with

fair value movements recognised directly in equity. To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables or receivablas then
associated fair value movements previously recognised in equity are recorded in the income staternent in conjunction with the corresponding
assel or liability. As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy confracts
amounted to £768m (ast year £619m) with a weighted average maturity date of six months (ast year seven months).

The tranglation exposures arising on the overseas net assets are hedged with foreign currency debt. As at the balance sheet date,
€276m {last year £243m) and HKE178m (ast year HK$107m) currency debt was hedging overseas net assets.

The Group also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist. Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the
hedging of the Group’s foreign currency intercompany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movemnents being recognised
in the income statement. The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance results in an overall nil impact on the
income statement. As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £108m {last year £80m).

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 58 March 2009 will be released to the income statement at various
dates over tha following 14 months (ast year 19 months) from the balance sheet date.

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Group, the cumency and interest rate exposure of the Group's financial
labilities is as set out below excluding short-term payables and the Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a.s. put option:

2009 2008

Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
rate rete Totad rate rate Total
fm £m fm &m £m £m

Currency = . .

Stedng T 22524 6209 28823 26659 6730 _ 53,3389
Euro ) - 76 2861 2037~ = 71925 1925
Horg Kang dollar - 164 16.4 - 69 6.9
Other 0.3 7.9 8.2 — -

2,260.3 9403 3,2006 2.6659 8724 3,538.3

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates related to LIBOR. These rates are for periods between one and
three moniths.

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance leases but including the partnership liabflity, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are
at an average rate of 6.0% (ast year 6.0%) and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed is nine years (last vear ten years).

(@) Interest rale risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to the sterling, US dollar, euro and Hong Kong dollar variable rate financial assets
and liabilities.

- The Group's palicy is to use derivative contracts where necessary to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this
risk. The structure and maturity of these derivatives comespond to the underying bomowings and are accounted for as fair value or cash
flow hedges as appropriate.

— At the balance sheet date fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,260.3m (ast year £.2,665.9m) representing the public bond issues and
finance leases, and amounting to 71% (ast year 75%) of the Group's gross borrowings.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

mﬁ; 200%
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 4.0 55
Medium-term notes 6.2 6.2
Finance leases ' 4.8 5.0

Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme 5.7 5.7
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21 Flnanmal tnstruments contlnued

Sensitivity analysis

The table befow ilustrates the estimated impact on the income statement and equity as a resuit of market moverments in foreign exchange
and interest rates in relation to all of the Group’s financial instruments. The Group considers that a 2% (last year 1%} +/- movement in interest
rates and a 20% (ast year 10%) weakening or strengthening in sterfing reprasents reasonable possible changes. However, this analysis is for
illustrative purposes only.

The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Group's floating rate debt as at the balance
sheet date. The impact in equity reflects the fair valus movement in relation to the Group's cross curency swaps. The impact from foreign
exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Group's transactional foreign exchange cash flow hedges and the net
investment hedges at the balance sheet date.

The equity impact shown for foreign exchange sensitivity relates to derivative and non-derivative financial instruments hedging net
investrents. This value is expected to be fully offset by the retranslation of the hedged foreign currency net assets leaving a net equity impact
of zero. The table excludes financial instruments that expose the Group to interest rate and foreign exchange risk where such risk is fully
hedged with another financial instrument. Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are either sterling denominated or the
foreign exchange risk is hedged.

1% decrease 1% increase 10% 10%
ininterest  ininterest  weakeningin  strengthening
rates rates sterling in stering
£m £Em
At 29 March 2008'
Impact on income statement: gain/(loss) 6.5 6.5) 8.3 52
Impact on equity: gain/loss) 41 (3.3 {15.5) 127
2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
ininterest  ininterest  weakening strengthening
rates rates in sterling in sterding
£m £m £m £m
At 28 March 2009 B
impact on income statement: gainflloss) o ) T 13.6 (151) (152 102
Impact on equity: gain/foss) ~ 2087 (134.3) (11.1) 7.4
1 The pricr year numbers have been amended to includa the Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a.s. put option.
Derivative financial instruments
2009 2008
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabiities
£m £m £m £m
Current ) I e
Options _ -hnedfortradng 270 (2700 124 (124)
Commodityswap  -cashfowhedge - S %
Forward foreign exchange contracts—-cash flowhedges ~ 599 (27.4) 50 @18
- ~ <hedfortrading 5.7 04 10 (09
Interest rate swaps "7 Zhedfortradng - 4.7 - -
92,6 (76.2} 184 {35.1)
Non-current o
Commodityswap ~~~~ — -cashfowhedge =~~~ - - ns - -
Crosscurency swaps  -cashfowhedges 2539 - 188 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts— cash flow hedgess 0.1 (1.8 13 -
254.0 (3.0 18.2 -

The Group holds a number of crass currency swaps to redesignate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt. The attributes
of these derivatives match the characteristics of the undertying debt hedged with rates of 7.034% (2017 bond) and 7.238% (2037 bond),
The amounts reported as options held for trading in derivative assets and liabilities represent the fair value of the call option with the
puttable callable reset notes mirored by the fair valus of the sold option to have this call assigned. During the year the Group entered into
energy swap contracts to fix a portion of the forecast energy usage for the 2009/10 financial year. These swaps are accounted for as
cash flow hedges.

Fair value of financial instruments
With the exception of the Group's fixed rate bond debt, there were no materiat differences between the canying value of non-derivative
financial assets and financial liabilities and their fair values as at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value of the Group’s fixed rate bond debt was £2,018.5m (ast year £1,858.2m), the fair value of this debt was £1,616.6m
{last year £1,740.7m).
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21 Financial instruments continued o - L
Capital policy

The Group'’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mainiain a capital structure that optimises the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

22 Provisions

UK QOverseas

resuuc:un& restrucmm T%trz::
At 1 April 2007 14.1 8.4 225
Provided in the year 11.5 0.1 116
Released in the year ) (3.2) 2.0) 5.2
Utilised during the year {4.2) 0.3 (4.5)
Exchange differences - 1.3 1.3
At 29 March 2008 18.2 7.5 257
At 30 March 2008 18.2 7.5 25.7
Provided in the year 86.6 - 86.6
Released in the year (0.7} - (0.7)
Utilised during the year (8.5) (0.6} (9.1)
Exchange differences - 1.3 13
At 28 March 2009 95.6 8.2 103.8
Analysis of total provisions:
2009 2008
. m m
Current . o o 636 111
Non-cument o o oo - ’ T i 40.2 146
Total provisions 103.8 257

The provision for UK restructuring is comprised of exceptional costs related to the strategic restructure {see note B), including onerous leases
and redundancies, as well as casts of closing Lifestore. The provision for overseas restructuring costs primarily relates to future closure costs
in respect of discontinued operations in Continental Europe.

The current element of the provision primarity relates to redundancy costs, costs refating to the rationalisation of T and logistics networks,
and costs of closing Lifestore.

The non-curent element of the provision relates to store closures, primarily onerous leases, and the closure costs of discontinued operations
in Continental Europe, and are expected to be utiised over a pericd of eight years.
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353 P‘eferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability methed using a tax rate of 28% (ast year 28%)} for UK differences
and the local tax rates for overseas differences.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabifities (after the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by IAS 12 -
‘Income Taxes") during the period are shown below, Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right
of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities}

Fixed Other Total
assels  Accelerated Pension  short-tarm UK
termporary capital  temporary  lemporary deferred Overseas
differences  allowances  differences  differences tax cefered lax Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At1April2007 = .._fe08 {1032 1835 219 116 (3 = 43
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 137 (41.4)  (150.5) (129 (g1 04 (180.7)
Credited/(charged) to equity - - {172.4) (15.1) {187.5} 1.8 {185.7)
At 29 March 2008 (76.9) (1446} (139.4) 6.1 {367.0} 5.1)  {372.1)
At 30 March 2008 (76.9) (144.6) (139.4) 6.1) (367.0) (5.1) (372.1)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement ] (2.0) 173 {87.0} (5.7) (77.4) {0.2) (77.6)
Credited/(charged) to equity - - 254.9 (29.5) 225.4 0.4 2258
At 28 March 2009 (78.9) (127.3} 28.5 (41.3} (219.0) {49) (223.9}
Analysis of total provisions:
2009 2008
£m Fm
Deferred taxassets L L 16 -
Detferred tax liabllities (225.5) (372.1)
Total (223.9) (372.1)

In arriving at the deferred tax on fixed assets, credit has heen taken for capital losses with a tax value of £60.5m (ast year £53,0m).
No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of averseas subsidiaries. As the earnings are continually reinvested by the Group,

no tax is expected to be payable to them in the foreseeable future. Undistributed profits of overseas subsidiaries amount to £380.6m
(last year £295.1m).

The Group is claiming UK tax relief for losses incurred by some of its current and former European subsidiaries. In light of continuing litigation,
no asset has been recognised in respect of these claims.

24 Share capital
2009 2008
Shares £m Shares om
Authorised ordinary shares of 25p each 3,200,000,000 800.0 3,200,000.000 800.0

Allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of 25p each:

At start and end of year 2,850,039477 7125 2,850,039,477 7125
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25 Statement of changes in shareholders‘ equity

Share Capital
Ordinary racemption ;1 Retained
share capital account reserve resenve samings'" Total
£m £m £m om £m

At 1 April 2007 7125 386.1 8.0 (4.4) 26343 37365
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders - - - - 8216 821.6
Dividends = - - - {344.0) (344.0)
Foreign currency translation - - - - 21.3 21.3
Put option for acquisition of minority interest® - - - - 522y (622
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit scheme - - - - 605.4 605.4
Deferred tax on retirernent benefit scheme - - - - (172.4) (172.4)
Deferred tax con share schemes - - - - (10.6) (10.6)
Charge for share-based payments - - - - 29.0 29.0
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equity - - - {33.5} - {33.5)
— recycled and reported in net profit* - - - 1.3 - 1.3
- amount recognised in inventories _ o - - 2.4 - 24
Ztax on fair value gains T e T e L ©7 - 2.7)
At 29 March 2008 7125 386.1 8.0 {36.9) 35324 4,602
At 30 March 2008 7125 386.1 8.0 {36.9) 3,5324 4,602.1
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders - - - - 508.0 508.0
Dividends - - - -  (356.3) (356.3)
Derecognition of financial liability® - - - - 571.7 571.7
Foreign currency transiation - - - (0.8} 339 33.1
Actuarial loss on retrement benefit scheme - - - - {927.1) (927.1)
Deferred tax on retirement benefit scheme ST T - - - - 2549 2549
Deferred tax on share schemes T o - - - - 0.2 0.2
Charge for share-based payments o . ) T - - - - 14.3 14.3
Cash flow and net investment hedges N ' ' ' '
Z fair value movement in ecuity i - 7 - - - 3172 (61.3) 2559
- recycled and reported in net profit* N - - - (206.8) - (206.8)
- amount recognised in inventories - - - (8.6) - (8.6)
— tax on fair value gains - - - (29.3) - (29.3)
Transfer of exchange on net investment hedges - - - 27.8 (27.8) -
At 28 March 2009 7125 386.1 8.0 626 35429 4,7121

1 Cumulative goocwil of £ril (last year £ni} arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries has been wiritten off against retained eamings.
2 Includes a cunmudative £52.3m gain (last year £18.4m gain) in the currency resarve.

3 Fair value of the put option aver the 49% minority interest in the share capital of Marks and Spencer Czech Repubiiic a.s.

4 Amounts recycled and reported in net profit have all been recorded in cost of sales.

& Redassification of financial instnament to equity. See note 20 for further details.
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26 Contingencies and commitments __

A. Capital commitments

2009 2008
m £m

Commitments in respect of properties in the course of construction 52.1 182.8

In respect of its interest in a joint venture (see note 15), the joint venture is committed to incur capital expenditure of £31.9m (last year nil}, of
which the Group’s share of this commitment is £18.3m (ast year nil).

B. Other material contracts

In the event of a material change in the trading arrangements with certain warshouse operators, the Group has a commitment to purchase
property, plant and eguipment, at values ranging from histerical net book value to market value, which are currently owned and operated by
them on the Group's behalf.

C. Commitments under operating leases
The Group leases various stores, offices, warehouses and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

2009 2008
£m &m
Total future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases expiring: B
Not later thanoneyear T T T T T 40 179
Later than one year and not fater than five years 178.5 90.4
Later than five years and not fater than 25 years 24644 22236
Later than 25 years 1,4880 1,5511
Total 4,1749 3,8830

The total future sublease payments to be received are £64.9m (ast year £70.5m).

27 Analysis of cash flows given in the cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities
S2weeks 52 woeks
endad

ended
28March 29 March
2009 2008
£m om
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 506.8 820.9
Income tax expense 199.4 308.1
Interest payable and similar charges 214.5 146.6
Interest receivable (50.0) {64.4)
Operating profit 870.7 1,211.2
Increase in inventories (46.0) (54.4)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 54.8 {33.5)
Payments to acquire leasehold properties (14.1) (47.6}
Increase/(decrease) in payables 213.2 (61.9)
Exceptional operating cash outflow ~ o (274 {25
Depreciation and amortisation : 4090 3176
Share-based payments - T 143 290
Profiton property disposals " T T T @A) @T0)
Seeptonalcosts T T oo TTer o T T T T sk T -
Exceptional pension credit T T T (231.3) {95.0)
Cash generated from operations 1,3727 1,2359

Exceptional operating cash outflows related to UK restructuring costs £26.9m {last year £2.2m} and the closure of Eurcpean operations
£0.5m (last year £0.3m),
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28 Analysis of net debt _ 3 S ——
A. Reconciliation of movement in net debt
Al Exchange
30March and other A
2008 non-cash 28 March
Restated  Cashflow movements 2009
£m £m £m £m
Net cash _
Bark loans (see note 20) {871.4) (6.8) {45.1}  (923.3)
Less: amaunts treated as financing (see below) 671.3 82.3 451 798.7
{200.1) 755 - (124.6)
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 18) 3180 a7.1 7.8 422.9
Net cash per cash flow statement 117.9 172.6 7.8 208.3
Current financial assets (see note 16) 2,633.4 35.8 32 26724
Debt financing
Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing (see above) (57.3) 258 3.0) (34.5)
Syndicated bark facility {see note 20) (see above) (614.0) (108.1) (42.1) (764.2)
Medium-term notes (see note 20} (1,795.0) - ®7) (1,801.7
Finance lease liabilities (see note 20) (83.5) 1.0 (19.4) (101.9)
Partnership liability to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (see note 20) {694.6) 15.1 5336  {139.9)
Debt financing (3,244.4) 66.2) 4684 (2,842.2)
Net {debt)/funds (493.1) 142.2 479.4 128.5
B. Reconciliation of net funds/{debt) to balance sheet
2009 Res?zii.g‘oé
£m £m
Balance sheet and related notes
Cash and cash equivalents - 4229 3180
Curent financial assets (see note 16) 26724 26334
Bank 1oans and overdrafts (see note 20) T T (159.1) (2574
Syndicated bark faciity (see note 20) T . T (781.2) (615.0)
Medlium-term notes (see note 20) - net of US dollar hedging derivatives' (1,848.1) {1,842.0)
Finance lgase liabiities (see note 20} (101.9} (83.5)
Partnership liakility to the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme (ses note 20) (139.9) (723.2)
65.1 {(569.7)
Interest payable included within related borrowing 63.4 76.6
Total net funds/{debt) 128.5 (493.1)

1 Madium-term notes have been restated for this note (o include the derfvativas reiating to them.
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29 Related party transactions _

A. Parent company and subsidiaries
During the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group ple, of £356.3m {last year £344.0m) and
increased the loan to its parent company by £34.7m (ast year £9.1m).

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries arse disclosed in the Company's separate financial statements.

B. Hedge End joint venture
Aloan of £5.0m was received from the joint venture on @ October 2002. It is repayable on five business days’ notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2008. Interest was charged on the loan at 5.25% until 31 Dacember 2007 and 5.5% thereafter.

C. Lima (Bradford} joint venture
A loan facility was provided to the joint venture on 11 August 2008. At 28 March 2009, £13.6m was drawn down on this facifity. Interest was
charged on the loan at 1.19% above 3-month LIBOR.

D. Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and batances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme are set out in notes 10 and 20.

E. Key management compensation

2000 2008

tm tm

Salaries and short-term benefits 47 73
Post-employment benefits B ) - - 0.1 04
Termination benefits i T ) B - 04
Share-based payments - e - T 1.9 12.3
Total 6.7 20.4

Key management in the comparative pericd included the directors, the Group Secretary and those members of key management who were
members of the Executive Committee. In 2007 the Financial Services Authority issued new guidance on PDMRs (Persons Discharging
Managerial Responsibilities) which, combined with increased size of the Executive Board in March 2008, has enabied the Group to restrict
the number of PDMRs to Board directors only and it is this group that is considered to be key management under IAS 24 in the current year.
Under this revised basis the comparative total key management compensation would have been £12.6m. Further information about the
remuneration of individual directors is provided in the Remuneration report.

During the year, key management have purchased goods at the Group's usual prices less a 20% discount. This discount is available to all
staff employed directly by the Group in the UK,

F. Other related party transactions

Supplier transactions occurred during the year between the Group and a company controlled by a close family member of Kate Bostock.
These transactions amounted to £5.2m during the year (last year £5.4m) with an outstanding trade payable of £nil at 28 March 2009 (last
year £0.1m). The company was a supplier prior to Kate's employment by the Group.

Supplier transactions occurred during the year between the Group and a company controlled by Martha Lane Fox's partner. These
transactions amounted to £0.1m during the year with an outstanding trade payable of Cnil at 28 March 2008. There were no transactions
with the company last year.

On 8 August 2008 Marks and Spencer Group plc made a loan of £0.5m to Graham Cakley, a director of Marks and Spencer plc. This loan is
due in full on 14 December 2009 and carried interest at 6% for the period from 8 August 2008 fo 31 July 2008. Since 1 August 2009 the
loan has carried interest at 3%. The loan plus interest outstanding at the end of the year was £0.5m.

30 Post balance sheet event — acquisition of subsidiary

On 31 March 2003, Marks and Spencer Relfiance India Pvt Limited, a 51% subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition of 100%
of the issued share capital of Supreme Tradelinks Private Limited, which up until this date was the Group's franchisee in India, for cash
consideration of £6.5m.

31 Ultimate parent company .

The ultimate parent company and controlling party is Marks and Spencer Group ple, a company incorporated in Great Britain. Copies of the
Marks and Spencer Group plc financial statements can be obtained from Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London, W2 1NW.




Company statement of recognised income and expense

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended

ended
28 March 29 March
2009 2008
£m £m
Profit for the year 350.2 696.5
Actuarial fosses)/gains on retirement benefit schemes {909.6} 607.3
Fair value movement in equity of available-for-sale assets ) ) (489) = -
Cash flow and net investment hedges - o . o
~ fair value movernents in equity 2384  17.2
- recycled and reported in net profit ’ ' T T (764) (140
~ amount recognised in inventories o - o (1.3} 03
Tax on ftems taken directly 10 equity T - = T T 2376 (183.4)
Net (osses)/gains not recognised in the income staterment (660.2) 427.4
Total recognised income and expense for the year {310.0) 1,123.9

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year is £350.2m (£696.5m).




Company balance sheet

As at As at
28 March 29 March
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets C6 2234 1252
Property, plant and equipment cr  2,9528 28863
Investment in joint ventures o] 10.5 6.1
Investment in group undertakings cs  1,579.7 1,585.7
Other financial assets Co 14.1 63.0
Retirement benefit asset ca - 504.0
Trade and other receivables c10 218.2 2725
Derivative financial instruments C14 2555 18.2
52542 54610
Current assets
Inventories 359.9 350.7
Amounts owed by parent company T T T T T T 26193 25846
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies I = T K 5 N 7% )
Trade and other receivables o H cl0 2454 2654
Current tax asset T ST T T ) - 5.0
Derivalive financial instruments - T/ T e T T T o 1256 460
Cash and cash equivalents e T T T T T T 1128 858
54621 41318
Total assets 10,7163 90,5928
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trads and other payables ciz 34090 21228
Borrowings and other financial liabilities ci3 924.2 854.9
Derivative financial instruments C14 1371 431
Provisions C15 61.5 9.6
Current tax liabilities 59,0 -
4,500.8 3,0304
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit defict ca 133.6 19.3
Trade and other payables - - - R crz 2143 1415
Borrowings and other financial fiabilites - T T ) Tc13 2,091 19260
Derivative financial instruments - i ) ci4 31 13
Provisions B c15 27.1 86
Deferred tax liabilities C16 157.3 316.7
26345 24194
Total liabilities 7,225.3 54498
Net assets 3,491.0 4,1430
Equity _ .
Called-up share capitl - equity T B T ci7 7125 7125
Share premium account i c17 3861 3861
Capital redemption reserve c17 80 80
Hedging reserve T 483 51
Retained earnings ci7 23361 3,031.3
Total shareholders’ equity 34910 44,1430

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 9 September 2009. The financial statements also

comprige the notes on pages 42 and 58,
Stuart Rose Chairman
lan Dyson Group Finance and Operations Director




Company cash flow statement
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S52weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Consoclidated cash flow statement
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations cie  1,1600 1,161.3
Taxpaid j (75.0) (158.1)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,085.0 1,003.2
Cash flows from investing activities o
Purchase of investment in subsidiary company (2.2} — (16.0)
Purchase of f property, plant and equipment (493.7)  (963.0
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment B 57.0 916
Purchase of intangible assets (119.9) (60.4}
Purchase of non-current financial assets 4.4) -
Net purchase of shares held in employes trusts - (31.9)
Interest received 9.1 35.8
Net cash outflow from investing activities {554.1) (943.9
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {168.5) (156.9)
Cash {outflow)/inflow from borrowings {29.2) 7.7
Drawdowrv{repayment) of syndicated bank facility 108.1 31786
Issue of medium-term notes - 631.6
Repayments under finance leases (2-1) (3.5)
Movernent in intercompany loans treated as financing _ 19.6 {575.4)
Equity dividends paid ) CT ) T (3563) (344.0)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (428.4) (122.9)
Net cash inflow from activities _ B . L . 102.5 {63.6)
Opening net cash T T ) T {1a3) 607
Closing net cash c20 (11.8) (114.3
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C1 Accounting policies

42

The Company's accounting policies are the same as those set out in note 1 of the Group financial statements, except as noted below.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, whers appropriate, provisions for impairment.

Loans from other group undertakings and all other payables are inttially recorded at fair value, which is generally the proceeds received.

They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost.

The Group has adopted the exemption to apply Companies Act 1985, s230. A company income statemant has not been produced.

C2 Employees

A. Aggregate remuneration

The aggregate remuneration and associated costs of the Compary's employees were:

2009 2008
Total Total
£m £m

Wages and salaries 844.7 832.2
Social security costs 573 540
Pension costs T T T e e e e e 609 _ 969
Share-tggm“ T T /s T/ ST T T T 143 290
Employee welfare and other personnel costs T 344 330
Exgatacoss . ___ . _ _ 84 105
Capitalised staff costs T T T {213 (209)
Aggregate remuneration 998.7 10347
Exceptional redundancy costs {see note 5) 107 -
Exceptional pension credit {see note 5) {231.3) 95.0)
Total 778.1 939.7
Details of key managament compensation are given in note 29E.
B. Average number of employees

2000 2008
UK stores
— management and supenvisory categories 5,442 5,267
— other 62,533 62,820
UK head office
- management and supervisory categories 2,564 2,586
— gther 633 804
Totat average number of employees 71,172 71,477

If the number of hours worked was converted on the basis of a normal working week, the equivalent average number of full-time employees

woutd have been 49,267 (last year 49,502).

C3 Dividends

2008 2009
per share £m

2008
£m

Dividends on equity ordinary shares
Paid final dividend

Paid interim dividend

790 72p 2252 2038
490 1314

140.2

12.1p 356.3

344.0

In addition, the directors have propased a final dividend in respect of the year ended 28 March 2009 of 5.3p per share amounting to a

dividend of £151.1m.
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C4 Retirement benefits

The Group provides pension arrangements for the benefit of its UK employees through the Marks & Spencer UK Pension Scheme. This has
a defined benefit section, which was closed to new entrants with effect from 1 April 2002, and a defined contribution section which has been
open to new members with effect from 1 April 2003,

The defined benefit section operates on a final salary basis and at the year end had some 21,000 active members (ast year 24,000}, 57,000
deferred members (last year 58,000) and 42,000 pensioners {last year 39,000). At the year end, the defined contribution section had some
8,000 active members (ast year 8,000) and some 1,000 deferred members (last year 1,000).

Retirement benefits also include a UK post-retirement healthcare scheme and unfunded retirement benefits.

Within the total retirement benefit cost, excludirg the exceptional pension credits, of £26.1m (last year £39.7m), £14.0m {ast year £28.0m)
relates to the UK defined benefit section, £10.9m {last year £10.5m) to the UK defined coniribution section and £1.2m (last year £1.2m) to
other retirement benefit schemes,

A. Pensions and other post-retirement liabilities
2000 2008

om £m
Total market value of assets 3,9316 4,992.7
Prasent value of scheme liabilities {4,048.9) (4,488.7)
Net funded pension plan (deficit)/asset (117.3) 504.0
Unfunded retirement benefits (0.5) 0.9
Post-retirement healthcare (15.8) (18.4}
Net retirement benefit (deficit)/asset {133.6) 484.7
Analysed on the balance sheet as: _
Retirement benefit asset - 504.0
Retirement benefit deficit {133.6)} {19.3}

(133.6) 4847

B. Financial assumptions

A full actuarial valuation of the UK defined benefit pension scheme was carried out at 31 March 2006 and showed a deficit of £704.0m.
The financial assumptions for the UK scheme and the most recent acluarial valuations of the other post-retirement schemes have been
updated by independent qualified actuaries to take account of the requirements of IAS 10 - 'Retirement Benefits' in order to assess the
liabilities of the schemes:

2009 2008

% %
Rate of increase in salaries ~ 1.0 31t04.5
Rate of increase in pensions in payment for sevice - — '

“preppri 1997 - - i - o 26 28
Zbetween April 1997 and July 2005 o T ST T 29 35
= post July 2005 T oTTmTmt o T T oo 23 24
Discount rate B R i B T N 68 68
infiation rate ST T ) - T T 29 35
Long-term healthcare cost increases . 7.9 8.5

The amount of the deficit varies if the main financial assumptions change, particularly the discount rate. If the discount rate increased/
decreased by 0.1% the IAS 19 deficit would decrease/increase by ¢. £75m.

C. Demographic assumptions

The demographic assumptions are in line with those adopted for the last formal actuarial valuation of the scheme. One of the most significant
demographic assumptions underlying the valuation is mortality. The post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on an analysis of the
pensioner mortality trends under the scheme for the period to March 2006 updated to allow for anticipated longevity improvements over the
subsequent years. The specific mortality rates used are based on the PMAG2 and PFA92 tables, adjusted to allow for the experience of
scheme pensioners. The life expectancies underlying the valuation are as follows:
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C4 ngi_rement benefits continued

2009 2008
years YOars
Current pensioners (at age 65) -males ) o S 1.2 210
T o ~ —females - - 236 235
Future pensioners {atage 65)  — males N 220 219
- females 24.3 243
D. Analysis of assets and expected rates of return
The major categories of assets as a percentage of total plan assets are:
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m % %
Property partnership interest 529.8 506.6 13 10
UK equities 448.8 7486 12 15
Overseas equities 6443 11,1166 16 23
Government bonds 127.2 480.4 3 ]
Corporate bonds 2,278.0 20585 58 41
Cash and other (96.5) 102.0 {2) 2
39316 49927 100 100
The expected long-term rates of return are:
2009 2008
% %
Property partnership interest 71 6.0
UK equities 8.0 83
Overseas equities ' ' N 8.0 8.3
Government bonds - ) o 42 46
Corporate bonds - o 68__ 60
Cash and other B — T 4.2 50
Overall expected return 7.2 B.7

The overall expected retum on assets assumption is derfved as the weighted average of the expected retums from each of the main asset
classes. The expected return for each asset class reflects a combination of historical performance analysis, the forward-locking views of
financial markets (as suggested by the vields available) and the views of investment organisations. Consideration is also given to the rate of
return expectad to be available for reinvestment,

At year end, the UK scheme indirectly held 369,793 {last year 479,356) ordinary shares in Marks and Spencer Group plc through its
investment in an Aquila Life UK Equity Index Fund.

E. Analysis of amount charged against profits

2009 2008
fm om

Operating cost
Current service cost _ 659 100.5
Curtailment gain {5.0) 3.0)
Exceptional pension credit {see note 5) (231.3) (95.0)
{170.4) 2.5
Finance cost ) o o
Expected return on plan assets ' B ' o ' T  {330.0)  (339.0)
Interest on scheme liabilites T T T - T T T T 295.2 281.2
Net finance income (34.8] (57.8)

Total 2052)  (55.9)
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c4 Retirement beneﬁts contmued

F. Scheme assels
Changes in the fair value of the scheme assets are as follows:

2009 2008
£m om
Fair value of scheme assets at start of year 4,992.7 51748
Expected retumn on scheme assets' 330.0 339.0
Employer contributions? 86.1 107.1
Contributions from scheme members. o ~ i i . ) 20 10
Benefits paid _ T ~ o — (2245 _(2192)
Actuarial loss ) o o - (1,254.7) (4100
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year 39316 4,992.7

1 The actual retisn on scheme assets was a loss of £924,7m gast year £71.0m}.

2 Last year the Group agreed to pre-fund £200.0m of its annual contribution lo the UK defined bengfit pension schema for the next tivee years. The prepayment Is in respect
mannualoomribm:’onslotheUstm)eaHherateof23?%ofperm1ablesalanaupto:3033p:enber2009mnm232%mtomnemﬁmmalyear I is estimated that

approximatety £66m of tha prepayment will relate to the year ended 3 April 201 0.

G. Retirement benefit obligations
Changes in the present valus of retirernent beneﬁt obligations are as follows:

2009 2008
£m £m
Present value of obligation at start of year 4,508.0 54596
Current service cost 65.9 100.5
Curtallment gain {5.0} 3.0)
Exceptional pension credit {231.3) ©5.0)
Interest cost 295.2 281.2
Contriputions from scheme members L o 20 10
Benefits paid _ o - T B o  {2245) _ (219.2)
Actuarial gain ) - T T ST T (345.1) (1.017.1)
Present value of obligation at end of year 4,085.2 4508.0
Analysed as:
Presant value of pension scheme liabilities 40489 44887
Unfunded pension plans 0.5 09
Paost-retirement healthcare 15.8 184
Present value of obligation at end of year 4,065.2 45080
H. Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in equity
2008 2008
£m £&m
Loss at start of year (343.3) {950.4)
Net actuarial (osses)/gains recognised in the year {909.6) 607 .1
Loss at end of year (1,252.9) (343.3)
I. History of experience gains and losses
2009 2008
£m £m
Experience adjustments arising on scheme assets (1,254.7} (4100)
Experiénce gains/losses) arising on schemme liabiiies ~ T T - 810 ~ 615
Changes in assumpiions underlying the present value of scheme liabiiies —~ ~ T 2641 1,0786
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in equity {909.6) 607 .1
Fair value of scheme assets 39316 49927
Present value of scheme liabiliies (4,065.2) (4,508.0)
Pension scheme (deficit)/asset {133.6) 484.7
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C5 Share-based payments I

not materially dissimilar to that of note 10 in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Disclosures for the Company are not provided here as the impact on the income statement, and the assets and liahilities of the Company are

C6 intangible assets
Computer
software
Compurer under
software development Total
£m £m fm
At31March2007
Costorvaluation ' - ’ - 506 263 759
Accumulated amortisation } i } ) i (18.5) - {18.5)
Net book value 3241 253 57.4
Year ended 29 March 2008 o
Opening net book valus | T T ' ) o o 321 253 574
Additions ST T T T T T e - - o i85 6851 836
Transtersi T '_' o TTTTTYTTTTTTTT T T T qes (25 -
Amortisation charge T e T nsy 0 - {15.8)
Closing net book value 47.3 77.9 125.2
At 29 March 2008 o ___
Cost or valuation T T T 816 779 1595
Accumulated amortisation T /0 - T T (34.3) - {34.3)
Net book value 47.3 779 125.2
Year ended 28 March 2009
Gpening net book value 47.3 779 125.2
Additions 1.1 118.7 119.8
Transfers 18.0 (18.0} -
Amortisation charge T T s TTmrrrm/m T (21.6) - (21.6)
Closing net book value 44.8 178.6 2234
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuation 100.7 178.6 279.3
Accumulated amortisation (55.9) - (55.9)
Net book value 44.8 1786 2234

Computer software and software under development are internally generated. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over a

period of three to five years.




C7 Property, plant and equipment

Company notes to the financial statements

a7

Fixtures, Asselsinthe
Landand  fittings and course of

SqumE o o
At 31 March 2007
Cost 11114 33466 965 4,554.5
Accumulated depreciation (78.3) (1,.961.0) - (2.032.3)
Net book value 10331 13856 965 2515.2
Year ended 29 March 2008 ) .
Opening net book value ) ) 10331 13856 965 25152
Addtions 1208~ 6878 _ 1464 _ 9640
Transfers 9.4 76.1 {85.5) -
Disposals (322.6) @.2) - (326.8)
Depreciation charge B30 (263.1) - (266.1)
Closing net book value B46.7 1,882.2 157.4 2,886.3
At 29 March 2008 - . o
Cost T 922.7  4,026.7 1574 51068
Accumulated depreciaion 76.0) (2.144.5) - 2.2205)
Net book value 8467 1,882.2 157.4 2,886.3
Year ended 28 March 2009 . _ o i ~
Opening net book value ' 846.7 1,8822  157.4 28863
Addtions T ) 208 3748 723 4679
Transfers - T T o T 130 1012 (1142 -
Disposals ~ T T T (85.6) (4.9) - {60.5)
Depreciation charge i 2.5 (338.4) - (340.9)
Closing net book value 8224 20149 1155 29528
At 28 March 2009 ) B o o
Cost - T 8988 43701 1155 53844
Accumulated depreciation T T o T T (76.4) (2,355.2) - {2,431.6)
Net book value 8224 2,0149 1155 29528

The net book value above includes land and buildings of £38.4m (ast year £39.2m) and equipment of £58.7m (ast year £35.6m) where the

Group is a lesses under a finance lease.

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year amounting to £32.8m {ast year £23.5m) were financed by new finance leases.

C8 Investments

A. investments in joint ventures

2009

2008

fm £m
Opening net book value _ 6.1 6.1
Additions - T - 4.4 _
End of year 10.5 6.1
Cost 10.5 6.1
Accumulated provision - -
Net book value 10.5 6.1

The joint ventures represent a 509% equity interest in Hedge End Park Limited, a property investment company incorporated in Great Britain,
and a 50% equity interest in Lima (Bradford) S.a.r.l, a property investment company incorporated in Luxembourg, acquired during the year.
The partrer in the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture is J Sainsbury pic and the partner in the Lima {Bradford) S.a.r.l joint venture is

ProLogis UK Holdings S.A.
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B. Investment in Group undertakings

Shares in Loans to

Group Group
undertakings underiakings Total
£m £m £m

At 31 March 2007
Cost or valuation 1,482.9 05 14834
Accumulated amortisation (113.6) - {113.8)
Net book value 1,369.3 05 11,3698
Year ended 29 March 2008 _
Opening net book value 7 ) - 1,369.3 05 13698
Additions 2189 - 2189
Provision for impairment (3.0 - 3.0
Closing net book value 1,585.2 05 15857
At 29 March 2008
Cost or valuation 1,701.8 05 11,7023
Accumulated amortisation (116.6) - (116.6)
Net book value 1,585.2 0.5 15857
Year ended 28 March 2009
Opening net book value 1,585.2 0.5 1,585.7
Additions 2.2 - 22
Provision for impairment {8.2) - (8.2)
Closing net book value 1,579.2 05 1,579.7
At 28 March 2009
Cost or valuaton T T T T T T T 4,704.0 05 1,7045
Accumulated amortisaion T 7 T T T T T (124.8) - (124.8)
Net book value 1,579.2 0.5 1,579.7

C. Principal subsidiary undertakings

The Company's principal subsidiary undertakings are set out below. A schedule of interests in all undertakings is filed with the Annual Return.

Progortion of voting rights
and shares held by:

Principal activity Country of incorporation and operation Company A subsidiary
Marks and Spencer International Holdings Limited Holding Company Great Britain 1% -
Marks and Spencer (Nederiand) 8V Flolding Company____The Nethertands T T TToo%
Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos BV~~~ Holding Company  TheNetherands . - 50%
Marks and Spencer Czech Republic a.s. Retailing Czech Republic - 51%
Marks and Spencer {Ireland) Limited Retailing Repubfic of Ireland - 100%
Marks and Spencer {Asia Pacific) Limited Retailing : Hong Kong - 100%
Marks and Spencer Simply Foods Limited Retailing Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer Marinopoulos Greece SA Retailing Greece - 100%
M.S. Insurance L.P. ~ Financial Services Guemsey - 100%
Marks and Spencer Investments Limited Finance ’ Creat Britain - 100%
St Michael Finance plc Finance Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer SCM Limited Procurement Great Britain 100% -
Per Una Group Limited Procurement . Great Britain 100% -
Marks and Spencer Scottish Limited Partnership Property Investment Great Britain = s

1 Marks and Spencer plc is the general partrer.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 231(5) of the Companies Act 1285 by providing infarmation only in
relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the financial

statements.
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©9 Other financial assets.

8
o8 |

£m
Non-current
Unlisted investments 7 30 30
Other investments' ) T a o T T 11.1 60.0
141 63.0
1 Other irvestments are the shares in Masks and Spancer Group plc held for employee share schemes.
Other financial assets are measured at fair value with changes in their value taken to the income statement.
€10 Trade and other Eceivableg N - o
2009 2008
fm £m
Non-current
Other receivables 8.0 101
Prepaid pension contributions o L o 60.7 1240
Prepaid leasehold premiums T T B -7 149.5 138.4
218.2 2725
Current
Trade receivables 84.6 73.5
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables {4.0) 3.2)
Trade receivables — net N i 806 703
Other receivables ) o, T T - 138 209
Prepaid pension contributions - ) T T 657 760
Prepaid leasehold premiums _ o o 28 27
Other prepayments and accrued income T T T 825 95.5

2454 265.4

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired amounted to £9.9m (last year £12.6m} and are mainly sterling denominated.

As at 28 March 2009, £741.3m {ast year £594.5m) of the intercompany receivable is interest bearing, Overall the interest received during the
year was £36.5m (last year £55.3m). Interest rates are set within individual intercomparny loan agreements however are approximately in line
with IBOR. The remaining £3,877.1m (ast year £2,784.4m) of intercompany receivables are interest-free.

C11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an initial maturity of three months or
less and credit card payment received within 48 hours. The camying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

The effective interest rate on short-term bark deposits is 0.4% (last year 4.8%); these deposits have an average maturity of five days (ast
year three days).

C12 Trade and other payables

2009 2008
em £m
Current

Trade payables 2733 163.3
Other payables 3038 299.8
Social security and other taxes 445 59.2
Accruals and deferred incorne 264.8 304.0
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 25226 11,2065
34000 21228

Non-current
Other payables ) 214.3 147.5

As at 28 March 2009, £1,090.2m (ast year £491.8m) of the intercompany payable is interest bearing. Overall the interest paid during the year
was £61.7m (ast year £35.7m). Interest rates are set within individual intercompany loan agreements however are approximately in line with
LIBOR. The remaining £1,432.4m {last year £804.7m) of intercompany payables are interest free.
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C13 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

2009 2008
£m £m
Current

Bank loans and overdrafts' . - o . 126 _ 2344

Syndicated bank faciity? - T T 7812 6150

Finance lease kabilties 13.4 55

924.2 854.9

Non-cupent S — .

6.375% £375m medium-term notes 2011% B N T T T T T se2s 3820

5.875% £400m medium-term notes 2012° ~ 7 777 417.9 4214

5.625% £400m medium-term notes 2014° 399.0 3088
6.250% US$500m medium-term notes 20174 3544 253.0 .
7.125% US$300m medium-term notes 2037¢ 2120 1511 |
6.875% £250m puttable callahle reset medium-term notes 203735 252.6 252.9 \

Finance lease liabilties 80.6 66.8

2,0991 19260

Total 3,023.3 2,780.9

1 Bank lcans and overdrafis includes a £5.0m (ast year £5.0m) loan from the Hedge End Park Limited joint venture {see notes 15 and 29).

2 Relates to a £1.2bn committed bank revolving credit faciity set to mature on 26 March 2013.

3 These notes are issued under Marks and Spencer plc's £3bn Eurcpean Medivm-Tenm Note Programme and all pay interest annualty,

4 Interest on these bonds is payable semi-annually,

5 These notes include an investor put and issuer call optlon exercisabie in Decermber 2012,

Finance leases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fal due as shown in the table on the following page. !t is the Group’s policy to lease |
certain of its properties and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term for equipment is six years and 125 years for property. |

Interest rates are fixed at the contract rate. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent payments. The Company's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ charges over the leased assets.

€14 Financial instruments

Treasury policy and financial risk management

Marks and Spencer pic is the main treasury entity of the group and as a resuit the treasury function is managed through this company. The
term Company and Group are therefore interchangeable in the risk analysis below. The Company operates a centralised treasury function to
manage the Group's funding requirements and financial risks in line with the Board approved treasury policies and procedures, and their
delegated authorities.

The Company's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, cash and liquid resources and various items, such as
trade debtors and trade creditors, that arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financia! instruments is to finance the
Company’s operations,

Group treasury also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate and curency swaps and forward currency contracts.
The purpose of these transactions is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Company's operations and financing.

It remains the Group's policy not to hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes, except where financial constraints
necessitate the nesd to liquidate any outstanding investments. The treasury function is managed as a cost centre and does not engage
in speculative trading.

The principal financial risks faced by the Company are liquidity/funding, interest rate, forelgn currency and counterparty risks. The policies and
strategies for managing these risks are summarised as follows: |
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C14 Financial instruments continued __

{a} Licidity/funding risk
The risk that the Company could be unable to settle or mest its obligations as they fall due at a reasonable price.

- The Group's funding strategy ensures a mix of funding sources offering flexibility and cost effectiveness to match the requirements
of the Group.

— Operating subsicliaries are financed by a combination of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium-term notes and committed syndicated
bank faciities.

At year end, the Company had a committed syndicated bark revolving credit facility of £1.2bn set to mature on 26 March 2013. This facility
contains only one financial covenant being the ratio of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and rents payable; to interest
plus rents payable. The covenant is measured semi-annually, In addition, the term out option under the £400m credit agreement which
expired on 13 February 2009 was converted Into a committed facility for the same period, expiring on 11 February 2010. This facility has the
same financial covenant as the main £1.2bn faciity. The Company also has a number of undrawn uncommitted facilities available to it. At
year end, these amounted to £105m {last year £155m), all of which are due to ba reviewed within a year, At the balance sheet date a sterling
equivalent of £764m (ast year £614m) was drawn under the committed facilities and £nil {ast year a further £29m) was drawn under the
uncommitted facilties.

In addition to the existing borrowings, the Company has a euro medium-term note programme of £3bn, of which £1.4bn (ast year £1.4bn)
was in issuance as at the balance sheet date.

The contractual maturity of the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities and derivatives is as follows:

Bank loans Syndiicated  Madum-term  Finance lease Dertvative Darvaiive

and overcralts bank facility notes liabilities Total Bss$ets liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m £m om

Timing of cash flows
Within one year (234.4) 615.0) (112.6} (10.6) (972.9) 1,252.7  (1,250.8) 1.9
Between one and two years ‘ - - {112.8) (16.4) (129.0) 154.0 {153.3) 0.7
Between two and five years - - (1,088.9 221) (1.411.0 84.8 (82.9) 1.9
More than five years - - {1,868.5) (178.3) (2,044.8 747.3 (736.4) 109
(234.4) (615.0) (3.180.8) (227.4) (4.2574) 22388 (2,2234) 15.4

Effect of discounting and foreign

exchange - - 1,321.4 155.1 1,476.5

At 20 March 2008 (234.4) _ (6150) (1.859.2) (723) _(2,7809

Timing of cashflows =~

Withnoneyear __— — (1206) (781.2) (1238 (17.7)  (1,0523] 16714 (1,669.8) 1.6
Betweenoneand twoyears _ _ - - (1238  (149) (1387 1032 (94.9) 8.3
Between two and five years - - (1,476.8)  (32.8) (1,5096) 1140 {83.2) 30.8

More than five years - - (1,706 (176.2) (1,8824) 1,003.8  (7089) 2949
[1296) (781.3) (3,430.6) (241.6) (4,5830) 2,8024 (25568 3356

Effect of discounting and foreign
exchange - - 14121 1476  1,599.7
At 28 March 2009 {129.6) (781.2) (2,018.5) (94.0) (3,023.3)

This table doas not include trade and other payables (see note C12) due to the low associated liquidity risk.
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C14 Financial instruments continued

{b) Countarparty risk
Counterparty risk exists where the Company can suffer financial loss through default or nen-performance by financial institutions.

Exposures are managed through Group treasury policy which limits the value that can be placed with each approved counterparty to
minimise the risk of loss. The counterparties are limited to the approved institutions with secure long-term credit ratings A+/A1 or better
assigned by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively, unless approved on an exception basis by a Board director, Limits are reviewed
regularty by senior management. The credit risk of these financial instruments is estimated as the fair value of the assets resuiting from

the contracts.

The table below analyses the Company’s ¢cash and cash equivalents and derivative assets by credit exposure sxcluding bank balances, store
cash and cash in transit.

Credit rating of counterparty
AAA/AAA AA/Aaa AA/AQY AA-IASY AA-/AZ2 AA-FASS
om £m £m £m £m £m

Total

Money market deposits’ - 3.4 2.2 - - - 5.6 |
Derivative assets? 5.2 116 6.2 - Q6 0.6 242
At 29 March 2008 5.2 15.0 8.4 - 0.6 0.8 29.8

AAA/AaR ANAal AAARZ As/Aa3 A+/AG NAZ

£m £m £m £m £m om Totat
Money market deposits - - 1.6 4.1 13.0 - 18.7
Derivative assets' 105.4 25.9 27.7 142.0 8.7 9.8 319.5
At 28 March 2009 105.4 25.9 29.3 146.1 21.7 9.8 338.2

1 Excludes derivative asset option which is embedded within the £250m puttable callable reset medium-term notes due 2037.
2 Exposure to A/AZ counterparty approved as an exception 1o treasury policy.

The Company has very low retail credit risk due to transactions being principally of a high volume, low value and short maturity.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date was as follows: trade receivables £81m (ast year £70m}, other receivables
£22rn (last year £31m), cash and cash equivalents £113m (last year £86m} and derivatives £381m {ast year £64m).

fc} Fareign currency risk
Transactional foreign currency exposures arise from both the export of goods from the UK to overseas subsidiaries, and from the import
of materials and goods directly sourced from overseas suppliers.

Group treasury hedge thesa exposuras principally using forward foreign exchange contracts progressively covering up to 100% out to
18 months, Where appropriate hedge cover can be taken out longer than 18 months with Board approval. The Comparty is primarity
exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to sterling against movements in US doflar and euro.

Forward foreign exchange contracts in refation to the Company's forecast currency requirerments are designated as cash flow hedges with
fair value movements recognised directly in equity, To the extent that these hedges cover actual currency payables or receivables then
associated fair value movements previousty recognised in equity are recorded in theincome statement in conjunction with the corresponding
asset or liability, As at the balance sheet date the gross notional value in sterling terms of forward foreign exchange sell or buy contracts
amounted to £1,489m (ast year £1,294m) with a weightad average maturity date of six months {last year seven months).

The Company does not use derivatives to hedge balance shest and profit and loss tfranslation exposures. Where appropriate, borrowings
are arranged in local currencies to provide a natural hedge against overseas assets.

The Company also hedges foreign currency intercompany loans where these exist. Forward foreign exchange contracts in relation to the
hedging of the Company's foreign currency intercornpany loans are designated as held for trading with fair value movements being
recognised in the income statement. The corresponding fair value movement of the intercompany loan balance results in an overall nil impact
on the income statement. As at the balance sheet date, the gross notional value of intercompany loan hedges was £108m (ast year £80m).

Gains and losses in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 28 March 2009 will be released to the income statement at various
dates over the following 14 months {last year 19 maonths) from the balance sheet date.
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C14 Finangi_ql_initrﬂr_quts contir}ued' i

After taking into account the hedging derivatives entered into by the Company, the currency and interest rate exposure of the Company’s
financial liahilities is as set out below excluding short-term payables:

2000 2008
Fixed Floating Fixed Foating

rate rate Total rate rate Tatal
m £m £m £m £m &m

Currency B _ _
Sterling 2,1125 6208 27424 1,931.5 6500 2.581.5
Euro _ - 2645 2645 - 1925 1925
Hong Kong dollar - 16.4 164 - 6.9 6.9

2,112.5 9108 3,023.3 10315 B49.4 2,7809

The floating rate sterling and euro borrowings are linked to interest rates refated to LIBOR. These rates are for periods between one and
three months.

As at the balance sheet date and excluding finance eases, the fixed rate sterling borrowings are at an average rate of 6.2% (last year 6.2%)
and the weighted average time for which the rate is fixed is ten years (ast year 11 years).

(dy Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in refation to the sterling, US dollar, euro and Hong Kong llar variable rate financial assets

and liabilities.

- The Group's policy is to use derivative contracts where necessary 10 maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings to manage this
risk. The structure and maturity of these derivatives correspond to the underlying borrowings and are accounted for as fair value or cash
flow hedges as appropriate.

— At the balance sheet date fixed rate borrowings amounted to £2,112.5m {last year £1,931.5m) representing the public bond issues and
finance leases, and amounting to 70% {ast year 69%) of the Company’s gross borrowings.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2000 2008
Committed and uncommitted borrowings 4.0 55
Medium-term notes o , 6.2 6.2

Finance leases 4.8 4.6°
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C14 Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

Tha table below ilustrates the estimated impact on the income statement and equity as a result of market movernents in foreign exchange
and interest rates in refation to all of the Company's financial instruments. The Company considers that a 2% (ast year 1%) +/- movement in
interest rates and a 20% {last year 10%) weakening or strengthening in sterling represents reasonable possible changes. However, this
analysis is for illustrative purposes only.

The impact in the income statement due to changes in interest rates reflects the effect on the Company’s floating rate debt as at the balance
sheet date. The impact in equity reflects the fair value movernent in relation to the Company’s cross currency swaps. The impact from foreign
exchange movements reflects the change in the fair value of the Company's transactional foreign exchange cash flow hedges at the balance
sheet date.

Tha table excludes financial instruments that expose the Company to interest rate and foreign exchange risk where such risk is fully hedged
with another financial instrument. Also excluded are trade receivables and payables as these are sither sterling denominated or the forsign
exchange risk is hedged.

1% decrease 1% increase 10% 10%
in interest ininterest weakeningin  strengthening
rates rates sterling in sterling
£m £m £m £m
At 20 March 2008
Impact on income statement: gain/floss) T 8.4 8.4) - -
Impact on equity: gain/{loss) 4.1 (3.3) 3.1 (2.5)
' 2% decrease 2% increase 20% 20%
ininterest  ininterest  weakening strengthening
rates rates in sterling in sterling
£ £m &m £m
At 28 March 2009
Impact on income statement; gain/{loss) C (208) 2204 - -
Impact on equity: gain/floss) | 208.7 (134.3) 153 (10.2)
Derivative financial instruments
2009 2008
Assets Lizbiliies Assats Liabilities
£m £m
Current
Optons T Thedmredng . 2t @ro 124 (24
Commodity swap - — cash flow hedge o - (16.0 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts— cash flow hedges 599  (27.4) 5.0 21.8)
— cash flow hedges with Group undertakings 331 (61.0) 27.6 8.0)
— held for trading 56 (0.4) 1.0 {0.9)
Interest rate swaps — held for trading - (a.6) . ny
125.6 {137.1) 46.0 {43.1}
Non-current
Commodity swap - cash flow hedge - (1.5 - -
Cross curmency swaps ~ cash flow hedges i 253.9 - 189 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts~ cash fiow hedges B ST T 0 (18 13 -
—cash flow hedges with Group undertakings 1.5 @1 - ({13
2585.5 (3.1) 18.2 1.3)

The Company holds a number of cross cunency swaps to redesignate its fixed rate US dollar debt to fixed rate sterling debt. The attributes
of these derivatives match the characteristics of the underlying debt hedged with rates of 7.034% (2017 bond) and 7.238% (2037 bond).
The amounts reported as options held for trading in derivative assets and liabilities represent the fair value of the call option with the

puttable callable reset notes mirrored by the fair value of the sold option to have this call assigned. During the year the Compary entered into
energy swap contracts to fix a portion of the forecast energy usage for the 2009/10 financial year, These swaps are accounted for as

cash flow hedges.

Fair value of financial instruments
With the exception of the Company's fixed rate bond debt, there were no material differences between the carrying value of non-derivative
financial assets and financial liabilities and their fair values as at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value of the Company's fixed rate bond debt was £2,018.5m (ast year £1,859.2m), the fair value of this debt was £1,616.6m
{last year £1,740.7m).
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C15 Provisions

Total

£m

At 1 April 2007 . 134
Provided in the year T T T T o 115
Released in the year T T oTT T T T T {2.5)
Utilised during the year (4.2)
At 29 March 2008 18.2
At 30 March 2008 - 18.2
Provided in the year T A_ - - T 79.6
Released in the year T T B ) 8.5)
Utilised during the year ] (0.7}
At 28 March 2009 886

Analysis of total provisions:

2000 2008

£m em

Current ) 61.5 9.6
Non-current 274 8.6
Total provisions 88.6 18.2

The provision for UK restructuring is comprised of exceptional costs related to the strategic restructure {see note 5}, including onsrous leases

and redundancies, as well as costs of closing Lifestore.

The current element of the provision primarily relates to redundancy costs, costs relating to the rationalisation of IT and logistics networks,

and costs of closing Lifestore.

The non-cureent element of the provision relates to store closures, primarily onerous leases, and are expected 1o be utilised over a period of

eight years.
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016 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28% (ast year 28%)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (after the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as permitted by 1AS 12 -
‘Income Taxes") during the period are shown below. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right

of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities}

Fixed Qther
assets  Accelerated Pension  short-lerm
lempaorary capital temporary temporary
differences  allowances  differences  differences Total
£m m £m fm m
At 1 April 2007 (85.4) (76.7) 184.3 402 62.4
Credited/{charged) to the income statement 11.2 43.2)  (150.1) (1360 (1957
Credited/{charged) to equity - - (172.5) (10.9) (183.4)
At 29 March 2008 (74.2) (1199 (1383 157 (316.7)
At 30 March 2008 (74.2) (1199} (138.3) 15.7 (316.7)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement {0.3) 15.0 {86.9) 6.0) (78.2)
Credited/{charged) to equity - - 254.9 (17.3} 237.6
At 28 March 2009 {74.5) (104.9) 29.7 (76) (157.3)
C17 Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity e
Share Capital
Ordinary premium  redemption Hedging Retained
share capital account resenve reserve earnings Tota
£m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 April 2007 712.5 386.1 8.0 20 22255 33341
Profit for the year aftributable to shareholders o - - - - 6965 6965
Dividends - T T T T T . - - (344.0)  (3440)
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit scheme o - - —: = 607.3 607.3
Deferred tax on retirement benefit scheme ™ T e - - - =TT r2sy (1725
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - (10.5) (10.5}
Charge for share-based payments - - - - 20.0 29.0
Cash flow and net investment hedges
- losses deferred in equity - - - 17.2 - 17.2
- recycled and reported in net profit - - - (14.09 - {14.0)
- amount recognised in inventories - - - 0.3 - 0.3
- tax on fair value gains - - - {0.4) - {0.4)
At 29 March 2008 7125 386.1 8.0 51 30313 41430
At 30 March 2008 712.5 386.1 8.0 51 3,031.3 4,143.0
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders - - - - 350.2 350.2
Dividends - - - - (356.3} (356.3)
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit scheme - - - - (909.6)  (909.6)
Deferred tax on retirement benefit scheme - - - - 254.9 254.9
Deferred tax on share schemes - - - - 0.2 0.2
Charge for share-based payments - - - - 143 14.3
Fair value movement in equity of available-for-sale assets - - - - {48.9) (48.9)
Cash flow and net investrment hedges '

— fair value moverment in equity - - - 2384 - 2384
- recyc!ed and reported in net profit - - - (176.4) - (176.4)
=~ amount recognised in inventories - - - - (1.3) - (1.3}

- tax on fair valug gains o - - - - {17.5) - (17.5)
At 28 March 2009 712.5 386.1 8.0 483 2,336 3,491.0
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A. Capital commitments

Commitments in respect of properties in the coursa of construction 29.1 111.2

8. Other material contracts

in the event of a material change in the trading arangements with certain warehouse operators, the Cormpany has a commitment 10
purchase property, plant and equipment, at values ranging from historical net book value to market value, which are currently owned and
operated by them on the Company’s behalf.

C. Commitments under operating leases
The Company leases various stores, offices, warehouses and eguipment under non-cancelable operating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

2000 2008
£m £m
Total future minirmum rentals under non-canceliable operating leases expiring:
Not later than one year 1.3 1.4
Later than one year and not later than five years - 54.2 431
Later than five years and not later than 25 years 2,168.5 2057.2
Later than 25 years 1,353.0 1,458.9
Total 3,577.0 3,560.6

The total future sublease payments to be received are £64.3m (ast year £269.9m).

C19 Analysis of Esb flows ¢ g_iv_er_rlhe cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
2009

2008
£m em

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 350.2 696.5
Income tax expense 157.4 263.8
Interest payable and similar charges ) ) 2299 176.1
interest recevable - T T T i (79.8)  (95.3
Operating profit 657.7 10411
Increase in inventories i ' ' ' T I ' 9.2)  (37.5)
Decrease/{ncrease) in receivables - o o S 627 _ (24.4)
Payments {o acquire leasehold properties ~  —~ T - (41) (165
increase/{decrease) inpayables TTTTTTTTITTTTT T 2082 462
Exceptional operating cash outflow (27.4) 2.2
Depreciation and amortisation 362.5 281.9
Share-based payments ' 143 29.0
Provision for impairment 8.2 3.0
Profit on property disposals (5.2) 64.3)
Exceptional costs 113.6 -
Exceptional pension credit (231.3) (95.0)
Cash generated from operations 1,160.c 1,161.3

Exceptional operating cash outflows related to UK restructuring costs £26.9m (ast year £2.0m) and the closure of European operations
£0.5m {ast year £0.2m).
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CCashandcashequivalents . ____ .. .

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
2009 2008

&m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 112.8 858
Bark loans and overdrafts (146.6) (235.4)
Syndicated hank facility {764.2) (614.0)
Bank loans and overdrafts treated as financing 786.2 649.3

(11.8) (114.3)

C21 Related party ransactions

A. Parent company and subsidiaries
During the year, the Company paid dividends to its parent company, Marks and Spencer Group ple, of £356.3m (ast year £344.0m) and
increased the loan to its parent company by £34.7m (last year £9.1m). The outstanding balance was £2,619.3m (ast year £2,584.6m).

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, ars summarised below:

2009 2008

Outstanding Outstanding

Transactions balances Transactions balances

£m m £m £m

Trading 288.6 (523.5) 2205 (502.2)
Interest “ {25.2) - (19.6) -
Dividends paid (356.3) - (3440 -

Dividends received 0.5 - - -

B. Hedge End joint venture
A loan of £5.0m was received from the joint venture on 8 October 2002. 1t is repayable on five business days' notice and was renewed
on 1 January 2008. Interest was charged on the loan at 5.26% until 31 December 2007 and 5.5% thereafter.

C. Marks & Spencer Pension Scheme
Details of other transactions and balances held with the Marks & Spencer Pension Scherne are set out in notes 10 and 20.

D. Key management compensation

Payments and benefits relating to key management are set out on page 38.

C22 Ultimate parent company

The ultimate parent company and controling party is Marks and Spencer Group ple, a company incorporated in Great Britain. Copies of the
group financial statements can be obtained from Waterside House, 35 North Wharf Road, London, W2 1NW.




